£ Gateshead Public Document Pack
Cou%__,____-

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA

Wednesday, 16 August 2017 at 11.00 am in the Whickham Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business

1 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 134)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment (attached)

Contact: Sonia Stewart: email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Tuesday, 8 August 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1

&= Ga teshead LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
FH Council_ 16 August 2017

www. gateshead. gov.uk

TITLE OF REPORT:  Application for the review of a Premises Licence:
Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen, Gateshead,
NE39 2BE

REPORT OF: Strategic Director, Communities & Environment:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the application from the Chief Inspector of
Weights & Measures, who is duly authorised on behalf of Trading Standards (Local
Weights and Measures Authority) at Gateshead Council for the review of a Premises
Licence for Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen, Gateshead, NE39 2BE.

Representations from Gateshead’s Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB),
Public Health, Northumbria Police, the Licensing Authority and Councillor Julie
Simpson have also been received and are to be considered with the review
application.

2. BACKGROUND

On 2 July 2005 Mr Paramijit Singh Bhandal became the premises licence holder and
designated premises supervisor for Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen,
Gateshead, NE39 2BE. This was following an application he had submitted to
convert the existing Justices’ Licence to a premises licence under the Licensing Act
2003. The Justices’ Licence (under the Licensing Act 1964) was held in the name of
Mr Paramijit Singh Bhandal and it noted him as the owner of the licensed premises.

The Premises Licence Holder has informed the Council that the premises are
currently up for sale.

3. THE CURRENT REVIEW APPLICATION

The review application submitted by the Local Weights and Measures Authority
(‘Applicant’) is attached at Appendix 1. A copy of the Premises Licence is attached
at Appendix 1.1.

The Applicant applied for a review of the existing licence (Appendix 1.1) under s51 of
the Licensing Act 2003 on the following grounds:

On 1 June 2017 4 cans of Fosters lager were sold to a 15 year old child
volunteer, contrary to section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003.

The seller on this occasion was the Premises Licence Holder and Designated
Premises Supervisor Mr Bhandal.

Page 3



The application for review relates to the following licensing objectives:

o The prevention of crime and disorder
o The protection of children from harm

The application for review was advertised in accordance with the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations
2005.

The Licensing Authority may attach conditions to any licence which are appropriate
for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. A copy of the Model Pool of
Conditions from Gateshead Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy is attached at
Appendix 1.2.

4. REPRESENTATIONS
The following representations have been received:

Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) (Appendix 2)
Public Health (Appendix 2.1)

Northumbria Police (Appendix 2.2)

Licensing Authority (Appendix 2.3)

Councillor Julie Simpson (Appendix 2.4)

S. PARTIES
The Parties to the hearing will be:

a) Local Weights and Measures Authority;

b) Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB);
c) Public Health

d) Northumbria Police;

e) Licensing Authority;

f) Councillor Julie Simpson and

g) The Premises Licence Holder, Mr Paramjit Singh Bhandal

6. THE POLICY & GUIDANCE
When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to:
(a) the Statement of Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy, and
(b) the Licensing Act 2003
(c) the Amended Guidance (April 2017) issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 by the Secretary of State.
Some relevant parts of the Policy and Amended Guidance are reproduced in

Appendices 3 and 4. The parties may refer to any part of the Policy and Guidance
during the hearing.

Page 4



7. FOR DECISION

The Licensing Authority may, having regard to the application, take any of the
following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives:

Take no action;

Modify the conditions of the licence (alter, add or remove conditions);
Remove the designated premises supervisor;

Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or
Revoke the licence.

Page 5



Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

11
1.2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4

APPENDICES

Review Application

Premises Licence

Pool of Model Conditions from Gateshead Council’s Licensing
Policy

Representation from Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children
Board

Representation from Public Health

Representation from Northumbria Police

Representation from Licensing Authority

Representation from Councillor Julie Simpson

Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy

Relevant Extracts from the Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003.

Area Plan

Page 6



APPENDICES

REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE:

Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen, Gateshead, NE39 2BE

Page 7



P

Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference manher (optional

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

10 JUL 2017
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. L .
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. I ali cases eiﬁmgNSlNG_ ,
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary,
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Sunlea Store

17 Hookergate Lane

High Spen

Post town Gateshead Post code (if known) NE39 2BE

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Paramijit Singh Bhandal

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

00CH 01048

Part 2 - Applicant details

{am
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) [
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) ™
3} a member of the club to which this application relates (]

(please complete (A) below)

Page 8



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Mis [ Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v ves
I am 18 years old or over L]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
{optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 9




(€) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Local Weights and Measures Authority
Gateshead Council

Trading Standards Service
Development and Public Protection
Civic Centre

Regent Sireet

Gateshead

NES8 1HH

Contact Officer — Tracey Johnson

Telephone number (if any)
0191 433 3934

E-mail address (optional)
traceyjohnson{@gateshead.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more hoxes v

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance

4) the protection of children from harm

XL

Page 10




Please state the ground(s) for review (piease read guidance note 2)

On 1* June 2017 Mr Paramjit Singh Bhandal sold four cans of Fosters lager to a 15 year old volunteer,
contrary to section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003,

Page 11




Please provide as much information as possible fo support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

Gateshead Council’s Trading Standards Service carries out test purchase operations using child
volunieers to check the compliance of retailers selling age restricted products such as alcohol. The
Service follows agreed guidelines when carrying out these operations.

On 1* June 2017 a test purchase operation was carried out by officers from Gateshead Trading
Standards using a 15 year old child volunteer. The volunteer was instructed to attempt to buy alcohol
from Sunlea Stores, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen, Gateshead. The child velunteer was sold four
cans of Fosters lager by Paramjit Singh Bhandal who is the Premises Licence Holder and Designated
Premises Supervisor. Mr Bhandal did not ask the volunteer 1o produce I} to prove his age.

During the test purchase operation the volunteer attempted to purchase alcohol from ten premsies and
was refused on eight occasions,

On 27" June 2017 Mr Bhandal was interviewed under caution regarding the alleged offence. He
confirmed that he sold alcohol to thel5 year old volunteer. He stated that it was a mistake and
happened due to him being in poor health which effects his memory and concentration. When shown a
photograph of the child volunteer that was taken on the day of the sale, Mr Bhandal stated that he
thought the child looked about 16 and confirmed that he should have asked him for ID. He claims that
he was rushing and this, combined with him being in poor health resulted in him accidentally serving
the child volunteer.

Mr Bhandal stated that he owns the business with his wife and employs his son and his sons wife. He
has not given any of them any training in relation to the sale of age restricted products. He does not
keep a refusals book as he claims that he doesn’t get underage children trying to buy from his shop. He
claims to know most of his customers and and states that anyone under 18 knows not to try to buy age
restricted products from his shop. He stated that if any passing trade customers come in he will ask
anyone who looks under 18 for 1D,

A Trading Standards Officer visited Sunlea Stores on 22nd May 2017 and issued Mr Bhandal with an
advice pack and a refusals book. During the visit Mr Bhandal stated that he did not currently use a
refusals book as no underage children attempt to buy from his shop. He was advised that he should
record any challenges he makes in the book and the benefit of operating a Challenge 21 or Challenge
25 policy was discussed. During the interview Mr Bhandal stated that he hadn’t had time to read the
advice pack and confirmed that he hasn’t used the refusals book.

Mr Bhandal stated that himself and his wife are no longer capable of working at the shop and stated
that he is in the process of selling it.

Page 12



Please tick v* yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the ]
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year
OO T

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Page 13




Please tick v
yes
* | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsibie authorities [
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate
¢ Junderstand that if 1 do not comply with the above requirements my 4]
application will be rejected

IT 1S AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature W

Capacity  Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

H you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided

that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application,

Page 14

-~ -



esties®

L COUNCIL_ crrmanen

WWW. gaféshead. gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises Details
stalad ises, 0

Sunlea Store
17 Hookergate lL.ane
High Spen

Post town Rowlands Gill | Postcode NE39 2BE

Telephone number 01207 542493

Not applicable

Retail Sale of Alcohol

Monday - Saturday 08:00 - 23:00 hours

Sunday 10:00 - 22:30 hours
Good Friday 08:00 - 22:30 hours
Christmas Day 12:00 - 15:00 hours & 19:00 - 22:30 hours




The opening hours of the premises

08:00 - 23:00 hours
10:00 - 22:30 hours
08:00 - 22:30 hours
12:00 - 15:00 hours & 19:00 - 22:30 hours

Monday - Saturday
Sunday

Good Friday
Christmas Day

¢ the licence autf

Whether these are On

andlor Off supplies

Part 2

Paramjit Singh Bhandal
17 Hookergate Lane
Rowlands Gill

Tyne & Wear

NE39 2BE

Tel: 01207 542493

Not given

| d nda
17 Hookergate Lane
High Spen
Rowlands Gill
Newcastle Upon Tyne
NE39 2BE

Tel: 01207542493

00CHO00104
Gateshead




| Annex 1_- Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises ficence -
(a) atatime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b} atatime when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal
licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.

Page 17



Page 18



/' %{3 PEr Oy be

Frzey

APPENDIX 1
LICENSING ACT 2003 - POOL OF MODEL CONDITIONS

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

1. The Licensee, that is the person in whose name the Premises Licence is issued,
shall ensure that atf all times when the premises are open for any licensable activity,
there are sufficient, competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of
fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Licence and for preventing crime and
disorder.

2. The Licensee shall ensure that on each day that door supervisors are engaged for
duty at the premises, their details (names and licence numbers) are recorded in an
appropriate book kept at the premises. In conjunction with this record book, the
licensee shall also keep an incident book. This record book and incident book must
be available for inspection by the Police or Authorised Officer at all times when the
premises are open.

3. Glass bottles containing beverages of any kind shall not be left in the possession of
any patrons after service and following the discharge of the contents into an
appropriate glass or drinking vessel.

4, Glass bottles containing wine may be sold for consumption with a meal taken at a
table, by customers who are seated in an area set aside exclusively for patrons
taking table meals.

5. No persons carrying open or sealed glass bottles shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open for any licensable activity.

6. One pint and half pint capacity drinking glasses, and highball {tumbler) drinking
glasses, in which drinks are served, shall be of strengthened glass (tempered
glassware) or of a material whereby in the event of breakage, the glass will
fragment with no sharp edges being left. Alternatively, drinks may be served in non-
glassware drinking vessels (e.g. plastic, polystyrene, waxed paper).

(Note. Weights and measures legislation requires the use of “stamped glasses”
where “meter-measuring equipment” is not in use.)

7. No glass drinking vessels or glass bottles shall be permitted (in the areas described
in the attached schedule and delineated on the approved plan.)

8. No patrons shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any
drinking vessel or open glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage.
(Note. This condition shall not apply to patrons who have purchased beverages for
consumption off the premises (within the curtilage of the premises licensed area or
in the area covered by a Pavement Café Licence)} with the express consent of the
Licensee, designated premises supervisor or responsible person.)

9. The Licensee and designated premises supervisor shall ensure that there are
effective management arrangements in place to enable them to know how many
persons there are in the premises at all times when the premises are open for a
licensable activity.

7 January 2016 28

Page 19



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

The maximum number of persons permitied to assemble on the licensed premises,
or relevant part of the licensed premises shall be indicated by a fixed notice bearing
the words "Maximum Occupancy” with letters and numbers not less than 20 mm
high, conspicuously sited at each relevant part of the premises and at the reception
point.

All members of staff at the premises including Door Supervisors shall seek “credible
photographic proof of age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the
age of 25 years and who is seeking access 1o the premises or is seeking to
purchase or consume alcohol on the premises. Such credible evidence, which shall
include a photograph of the customer, will either be a passport, photographic
driving licence, or Proof of Age card carrying a “PASS” logo.

A suitably worded sign of sufficient size and clarity shall be displayed at the point of
entry fo the premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale, advising
customers that they may be asked to produce evidence of their age.

A conspicuous notice shall be displayed on or immediately outside the premises
adjacent to the entrance to the premises which gives details of times when the
premises are permitted to be open for any licensable activity.

A conspicuous notice shall be displayed on, or immediately outside the premises,
or immediately adjacent to the premises, which gives details of any restrictions
relating to the admission of children to the premises.

A CCTV system shall be designed, installed and maintained in proper working
order, to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority and in consultation with
Northumbria Police. Such a system shall:

s Ensure coverage of all entrances and exits to the Licensed Premises
internally and externally,

* The till area

* Ensure coverage of such other areas as may be required by the Licensing
Authority and Northumbria Police.

* Provide continuous recording facilities for each camera to a good standard
of clarity. Such recordings shall be retained (on tape or otherwise) for a
period of 28 days, and shall be supplied to the Licensing Authority or a
Police Officer on request.

¢ Be in operation at all times the premises are in use.

The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor shall co-
operate with any reasonable crime prevention initiative which are promoted by the
Licensing Officer at Gateshead Police Station from time to time.

The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor shall comply
with any reasonable measures required by the Licensing Authority from time to time
relating to preventing the sale of alcohol o children.

A ‘Challenge 25' policy shall be adopted, ensuring that all members of staff at the
premises shall refuse to sell alcohol to anyone who appears to be under the age of

7 January 2016 30

Page 20



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

25 and who is seeking to purchase alcohol unless that person provides credible
photographic proof of age evidence.

Implementing and maintaining a ‘Challenge 25’ policy, including staff training to
prevent underage sales, and ensuring that all members of staff at the premises
shall seek credible photographic proof of age evidence from any person who
appears to be under the age of 25 and who is seeking to purchase cigareties
and/or alcohol. Such credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the
customer, will either be a passport, photographic driving licence, or Proof of Age
card carrying a ‘PASS’ logo.

Staff are to be made aware of ‘proxy sales’ and shall refuse sales of alcohol to
adults who they suspect are buying alcohol on behalf of children.

Stalf shall refuse to sell age restricted products to any adult who they suspect to be
passing age restricted products to under age children (i.e. proxy sales). Details of
these refusals should also be kept in the ledger.

Staff are to be given sufficient training agreed with the Licensing Authority in the
control of age-restricted products, refresher training for existing staff and training for
all new staff.

Accurate training records are to be kept for all staff involved in sales of age-
restricted products.

A refusals ledger shall be maintained, and made available to Local Authority
enforcement officers on request. Refusals to be supported by the CCTV cameras.

Staff are to be provided with an unobstructed view of the area immediately outside
the shop and entrance.

Persons under the age of 18 shall only be allowed to enter or remain on the
premises prior to 21:00 hours each day, and only when accompanied by a
responsible adult, and with the discretion of the Designated Premises Supervisor.

No person carrying open or sealed glass bottles shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open for any licensable activity.

There shall be displayed suitably worded signage of sufficient size and clarity at the
point of entry to the premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale
advising customers that underage sales of alcohol are illegal and that they may be
asked to produce evidence of their age.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC SAFETY

29.

30.

Notices detailing the actions to be taken in the event of fire or other emergency,
including how to summon the fire brigade shall be prominently displayed and
protected from damage and deterioration.

Temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall not be provided without
notification to the licensing authority at least ten days before commencement of the

7 January 2016 31

Page 21



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

work and prior inspection by a suitable gualified electrician. Premises shall not be
opened to the public until the work is deemed satisfactory by the above pariies.
Where it is not possible to give ten days notification to the licensing authority of
provision of temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems, the work shall be
undertaken by competent, qualified persons.

All temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall be inspected and
certified by a competent person before they are put to use.

An appropriately qualified medical practitioner shall be present throughout a sports
entertainment involving boxing, wrestling, judo, karate or similar.

Where a ring is constructed for the purposes of boxing, wrestling or similar sports, it
must be constructed by a competent person, and inspected by a Building Control
Officer of the Council (at the cost of the applicant). Any material used to form the
skirt around the ring must be flame retardant.

At any wrestling or other entertainment of a similar nature, members of the public
shall not occupy any seat within 2.5 metres of the ring.

Any Licensee wishing to hold a ‘Tolal Fighting’ event on the licensed premises shall
first apply to the Council for a variation of this licence and in the event that such
application is granted, shall comply with any additional conditions that may be
imposed. The term ‘Total Fighting' shall include any ‘full contact’ martial arts
involving the combined codes of judo, karate and ju-jitsu, judo, sombo and Olympic
wrestling or any other mixed martial arts.

At water sports entertainments, staff adequately trained in rescue and life safety
procedures shall be stationed and remain within the vicinity of the water at all
material times.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC SAFETY IN THEATRES, CINEMAS, CONCERT
HALLS AND SIMILAR PLACES

38.

The number of attendants on each floor in a closely seated auditorium shall be as
set out on the table below:

Number of members of the Minimum number of atiendants required to
audience present on a floor be present on that floor

1 One

101 Two

251 Three

501 Four

751 Five

And one additional attendant for each additional 250 persons (or part thereof)

7 lanuary 2016 32

Page 22




39.

40.

41

42.

43.

44.

45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Attendants shall not be engaged in any duties that would hinder the prompt
discharge of their duties in the event of an emergency or entail their absence from
that floor or auditorium where they are on duty.

All attendants shall be readily identifiable 1o the audience {(but this need not entail
the wearing of a uniform}.

The premises shall not be used for a closely seated audience except in accordance
with a seating plan(s}, a copy of which is available at the premises and shall be
shown to any authorised person on request.

No articte shall be attached to the back of any seat which would reduce the clear
width of seatways or cause a tripping hazard or obstruction.

A copy of any certificate relating to the design, construction and loading of any
temporary seating shall be kept available at the premises and shall be shown to
any authorised person on request.

Sitting on floors shall not be permitted except where authorised in the premises
licence or club premises certificate.

Waiting or standing shall not be permitted except in areas designated in the
premises licence or club premises certificate.

In no circumstances shall anyone be permitted to:

e sit in any gangway;
stand or sit in front of any exit; or
¢ stand or sit on any staircase including any landings.

Except as authorised by the premises licence or club premises certificate, no drinks
shall be sold to, or be consumed by a closely seated audience except in plastic and
paper containers.

Clothing or other objects shall not be placed over balcony rails or upon balcony
fronts.

Any special effects or mechanical installation shall be arranged and stored to
minimise any risk to the safety of the audience, the performers and staff.

Except with the prior written approval of the Council and subject to any conditions,
which may be attached to such approval no special effects shall be used on the
premises.

Special effects include:

dry ice machines and cryogenic fog;
smoke machines and fog generators;
pyrotechnics, including fireworks;
real flame;

firearms;

7 January 2016 33

Page 23



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

motor vehicles;

e strobe lighting;

» lasers {see HSE Guide ‘The Radiation Safely of Lasers used for display
purposes’ [HS(G)95] and BS EN 60825: ‘Safety of laser products’);

* explosives and highly flammable substances.

Where premises used for film exhibitions are equipped with a staff alerting system
the number of attendants present shall be as set out in the table below:

Number of Minimum number of Minimum number of other staff on
members of | attendants required to be the premises who are available to
the audience on duty assist in the event of an emergency

present on
the premises
1-500 Two One
501 - 1000 Three Two
1001 - 1500 Four Four

1501 or more

Five plus one for every 500
(or part thereof) persons
over 2000 on the premises

Five plus one for every 500 (or part
thereof) persons over 2000 on the
premises

Staff shall not be considered as being available to assist in the event of an
emergency if they are:

» the holder of the premises licence or the manager on duty at the premises;

or

* a member of staff whose normal duties or responsibilities are likely to
significantly affect or delay his response in an emergency situation; or

* a member of staff whose usual location when on duty is more than 60
metres from the location to which he is required to go on being alerted to an
emergency situation.

Attendants shall as far as reasonably practicable be evenly distributed throughout
all parts of the premises to which the public have access and keep under
observation all parts of the premises to which the audience have access.

The staff alerting system shall be maintained in working order and be in operation
at all times the premises are in use.

The level of lighting in the auditorium shall be as great as possible consistent with
the effective presentation of the film; and the level of illumination maintained in the
auditorium during the showing of films would normally be regarded as satisfactory if
it complies with the standards specified in BS CP 1007 (Maintained Lighting for

Cinemas).

Page 24

7 lanuary 2016 34




CONDITIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC NUISANCE

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Windows, doors and fire escapes shall remain closed during proposed
entertainment events within the premises

Noise generated by amplified music shall be controlied by a noise limiting device
set at a level determined by the Local Authority Environmental Health Officer, such
level being confirmed in writing to the Licensee.

Noise limiting devices, once set, cannot be reset or adjusted without consultation
with the Local Authority Environmental Health Officer.

The lobby doors at the premises shall be kept closed except for access and egress.
Door staff shall supervise to ensure that the doors are maintained closed as far as
possible when public entertainment is taking place.

Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at exits and other circulatory areas
requesting patrons to leave the premises having regard to the needs of local
residents. In particular, the need to refrain from shouting, slamming car doors and
the sounding of car horns shall be emphasised.

The premises personal licence holder, designated premise supervisor and door
supervisor shall monitor the activity of persons leaving the premises and remind
them of their public responsibilities where necessary.

Noise and vibration from regulated entertainment shall not be audible at the nearest
noise sensitive premises

There shall be provided at sufficient regular intervals throughout the premises and
grounds, litter bins which shall be emptied and waste removed on a frequent basis,
and staff and attendants shall as far as reasonably practicable ensure that the
public, members and guests do not litter.

CONDTIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF HARM TO CHILDREN

64.

65.

66.

Children under 18 years will not be allowed access to the premises.

The club premises certificate holder shall ensure that all attendants (including
volunteers and staff) who are to supervise children have been properly vetted (by
an enhanced DBS check) and have no convictions that would make them
unsuitable to supervise children.

There shall be child protection policies agreed with the Licensing Authority and
actioned accordingly.

7 lanuary 2016 35

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



REPRESENTATIONS

REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE:

Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen, Gateshead, NE39 2BE

Page 27



B

qustive Contnp,

Gateshead local safeguarding children board

Nipay g kWD

19 July 2016
To Whom It May Concern:

Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is the statutory body
responsible for the protection of children in Gateshead. On behalf of the LLSCB, |

~am submitting a representation in relation to the application for a review of the

Premises Licence for Sunlea Stores.

Please find attached the representation which sets out my concerns under the
grounds of protection of children from harm.

Please note, | will be leaving my post in Gateshead Councit on 28 July 2017 and
therefore will be unable to attend a review hearing. My work will be temporarily
covered by Carole Paz-Uceira until a permanent replacement is in post and | will
ensure that Carole is aware of this representation, should there be any queries.

Yours sincerely

l.ouise Gill
LSCB Business Manager

Louise Gill, LSCB Business Manager
LSCB Business Unit, Care, Wellbeing & Learning, Civic Cenire
Regent Street, Gateshead, NE§ 1HH
{0191} 433 8010 louisegill@gateshead.qov.uk
www.gateshead.gov.uk/LSCB

Page 28



@ Gateshead
HH COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

if you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In ali cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

I/We (insert name) Louise Gill

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 -~ PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen

Post Town Gateshead Post Code NE39 2BE

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Paramijit Singh Bhandal

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

00CH 01048

PART 2 — DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1) A responsibte authority (please complete (C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) [
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or {B) below) O
Page 29




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title {for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

lam 18 years old or over Yes {Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Paytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B} DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Body responsibie for the protection of children from harm

Louise Gill, Local Safeguarding Children Board Business Manager
L.SCB Business Unit

1% Floor, Civic Centre

Regent Street, Gateshead

NES 1HH
Telephone Number (If any) (0191) 433 8010
E-Mail address (optional) louisegill@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 30

-+ -




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder Lt
2, Public Safety d
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance t
4, The Protection of Children From Harm v

Please state the ground(s) for representation

Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is concerned that the licensable activities taking
place at Sunlea Stores are not in accordance with the promotion of another licensing objective, which is the
protection of children from harm.

it has come to the attention of Gateshead LSCB that there is evidence to suggest that underage sales of
alcohol have taken place at Sunlea Stores, thereby demonstrating a failure to promote the licensing objective
to protect children from harm. On 1 June 2017 alcoho! was sold to a 15 year old child volunteer, contrary to
section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003. The 15 year old was able to purchase four cans of Fosters lager
from the store,

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

Gateshead Local Safeguarding Children Board, the body responsible for the protection of children from
harm, is concerned that the licensable activities are not in accordance with the promotion of the ticensing
objectives, one of which is the protection of children from harm. The protection of children and young people
has always been a core commitment of all partners who work together in Gateshead to keep them safe.

On 1 June 2017 a test purchase operation was carried out by officers from Gateshead Trading Standards
using a child volunteer and they were able to purchase four cans of Fosters Lager. The lager was sold by
Paramjit Singh Bhandal, who is the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor. He did
not ask the volunteer to produce ID to prove his age. He was subsequently interviewed under caution and
confirmed making the sale. He stated that this was a mistake and happened due to him being in poor health.
He was shown a photo of the child volunteer and stated that he looked about 16 and confirmed that he
should have asked him for ID but he was rushing and because of this and his health he accidentally served
him alcohol.

Mr Bhandal also stated that he has not provided training to any of his staff on the sale of age restricted
products and does not keep a refusals log as he does not have children under 18 trying to buy from his shop.
Prior to this incident the store had been visited by Trading Standards and was issued with an advice pack
and refusals book and Challenge 21 and Challenge 25 were discussed. He stated in interview that he hadn't
had time to read the advice pack or use the refusals book.

LSCBs are the key statutory mechanism for protecting children from harm and agreeing how the relevant
organisations in each local area will cooperate to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, and for
ensuring the effectiveness of what they do. Gateshead L.SCB is made up of a number of statutory partners
including Gateshead Council, Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust, Newcastle Gateshead CCG, North
East Ambulance Service, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust, Northumbria CRC,
Northumbria Police, Tyne & Wear Fire and Rescue Service and CAFCASS. Access to alcohol by young
people and the resulting crime and disorder is a significant community problem that impacts on crime, and
the fear of crime, within many areas of the Borough as well as being an issue that puts children and young
people at risk themselves, The vision of Gateshead LSCB is that every child should grow up in a loving and
secure environment, which is free from abuse, neglect and crime, enabling them to enjoy good health and
fulfif their social and educational potential. Evidence suggests that binge drinking in adolescence could limit
opportunities for this to occur and therefore the LSCB is keen to ensure that licensees restrict access to
alcohol by underage drinkers and have processes in place to ensure the protection of children from harm.

Research suggests that the adolescent brain may be uniguely sensitive to alcohol's effects due to the major
changes in brain structure and function that occur during this developmental period. Studies have found that
binge drinking by youths is also associated with alcohol-related violence and other anti-social behaviours. A
UK study found that binge drinking in adolescence was associated with an increased risk of health, social,
educational and economic adversity continuing inte later adult fife. Alcohof intoxication can occur during

Page 31




binge drinking and the acute toxic effects are generally related to blood alcohol concentrations. There is
evidence to suggest that the severe hypoglycaemia (low blood sugar) that can accompany alcohol
intoxication and may result in coma occurs more commonly in adolescents than adults. Deaths from alcohol
poisoning appear to occur most often when relatively inexperienced drinkers consume very large amounts of
alcohol in a short time

The information above would appear to suggest that Sunlea Stores is not complying with the licensing
objective of the protection of children from harm. Licence objectives and laws are not being followed and
children in Gateshead are at risk because of this. Whilst Mr Bhandat has stated that he is no longer capabie
of working in the shop and is in the process of selling it, the store is still trading and still selling alcoho! and
therefore still posing a risk to children.

Please
Tick v
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before?
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

if you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and
when you made them.

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information proviced by you, or information about you provided by a third parly, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Depariments and local

authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Councll nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the faw permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998, If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NES 1HH

Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent, (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature Date 19.07.2017

Capacity

Louise Gill, LSCB Business Manager

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Page 32



Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.
Piease list any additional information or details for example dates of probtems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representiative’s agent (for example solicitor} may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority fo do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 33




foprneativn S|

= Gateshead
HH COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write iegibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the

completed form for your records.

IWe (insert name) Alice Wiseman

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 — PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or

description

Sunlea Store

17 Hookergate Lane
High Spen

Post Town Gateshead Post Code NE39 2BE

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Mr Paranijit Singh Bhandal

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

PART 2 - DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1) A responsible authority {please complete {C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) O
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) [
Page 34



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

[ am 18 years old or over Yes {Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (if any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
Alice Wiseman

Director of Public Health
Gateshead Council
Regent Street
Gateshead

NE8 1HH

Telephone Number (If any)

0191 433 2615

E-Mail address (optional)




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder LJ
2. Public Safety L
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance u
4, The Protection of Children From Harm v

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

This representation is made in my capacity as Director of Public Health for the Borough of Gateshead.

The Director of Public Health in Gateshead is concerned that the licensable activities taking place at Sunlea
Stores in Gateshead are not in accordance with the promotion of the licensing objectives, one of which is
‘The protection of children from harm.’

It has come to the attention of the Public Health Team that there is evidence to confirm that underage sales
of alcohol have taken place at Sunlea Stores, thereby demonstrating a failure to promote the licensing
objective to protect children from harm. On 1 June 2017, Gateshead Council Trading Standards carried out
a test purchase operation using a 15 year old child volunteer who was sold a 4 pack of Fosters lager by
Paranijit Singh Bhandal. Mr Bhandal did not ask the volunteer to provide 1D to prove his age.

Since 2013 Directors of Public Health have been ‘responsible authorities’ under the Licensing Act 2003.The
role of the Director of Public Health is to help promote the health and wellbeing of the local populations they
serve. The Public Health approach to alcohol is to encourage and promote responsible drinking and protect
young people from related harm. This is an expansive remit that influences a wide range of circumstances,
including iocal licensing arrangements. Similarly the licensing regime is concerned with the promotion of the
licensing objectives, which collectively seek to protect the quality of life for those who live, and work in the
vicinity of licensed premises, and those who socialise in licensed premises.

This representation is made in respect of the review of the premises licence for Sunlea Stores. | am
particularty concerned that the arrangements to prevent underage sales are not sufficiently robust and
therefore fail to protect children from harm. The sale to a minor demonstrates that the checks and balances
in place are not rigorous enough and could also lead to a significantly heightened risk of proxy sales, due to
the lack of care being taken to check the authenticity and age of the person buying the alcohol.

The sale of alcohol to children leads to a negative impact on the children that consume the alcohol and on
those who live and work in the vicinity of the premises. Alcohol can have a significant impact on the heaith of
young people and alcohol related harm remains one of the biggest health problems. Research suggests that
alcohol can affect the developing brain in early adolescence, and this is also the age when some young
people are particularly vuinerable to risk taking. The Healthy Child Programme (2010) states that 50% of
adolescent binge drinkers are more likely to be dependent on alcohol or misusing substances when they
reach the age of 30. Alcohol misuse in adolescence has been linked fo poorer memory, increased risk of
addiction in later life, impaired ability to understand the physical world. The Chief Medical Officer issues
Guidance on the Consumption of Alcohol by Children and Young People - advising that an alcohol free
childhood is the healthiest and best option. Public Health evidence suggests adolescents are less likely to try
and avoid harm than any other age groups and therefore more likely to go on to binge drink and experience
alcohol use disorders and therefore the Director of Public Health is keen to ensure that licenses restrict
access to alcoho! by underage drinkers and have processes in place to ensure the protection of children

from harm,

The latest available data from Public Health England (2013/14-2015/16) for admissions rate for Gateshead,
is higher than the England average for the rate of young people under 18 who are admitted to hospital
because they have a condition wholly related to alcohol such as alcohol overdose. The North East has the

Page 36




rhighest rate of under 18 hospital admissions in England. In Gateshead there have been 80 alcohol specific
hospital admissions for under 18's (2013/14-2015/18).

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation
{Please read guidance note 2)

On 1% June 2017 Gateshead Council Trading Standards carried out a test purchase operation using a 15
year old child volunteer who was sold a 4 pack of Fosters lager by Paranijit Bhandal and was not challenged

to produce {D to prove his age.

At the time of the sale the premises licence and the DPS was Paranijit Bhandal. Paranijit Bhandal was
interviewed under caution regarding the alleged offence. During this interview he confirmed that he had sold
alcohol to the 15 year old volunteer on 1st June 2017. When presented with a photograph of the child
volunteer, Mr Bhandal stated that the child looked about 16 and that he should have asked him for ID. Mr
Bhandaf stated that he accidentally served the child due to his ill health and that he was rushing at the time.
Mr Bhandal stated that he and his wife are in the process of selling the shop as they are no longer capable of

running the business.

During the interview it was also noted that Mr Bhandal currently owns the business with his wife and employs
his son and son's wife and that he has not given them any training in relation to the sale of age restricted
products. Mr Bhandal does not keep a refusals book as he claims that he doesn't get underage children
trying to buy alcohol in his shop. He also stated that if any passing trade custorers come in he will ask for ID
for anyone who looks under 18.

A Trading Standards Officer visited Sunlea Stores on 22™ May 2017 and issued Mr Bhanda! with an advice
pack and a refusals book. During the visit Mr Bhandal! stated that he did not currently use a refusals book as
no underage children attempt to buy from his shop. He was advised that he should keep a refusals log and
would benefit from operating a Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 policy. During the interview Mr Bhandal stated
that he had not had time to read the advice pack and confirmed that he hasn't used the refusals book.

The Director of Public Health shares the concerns raised by Trading Standards that, as a result of the
above sale and the failure of systems in place at the shop on the day of the sale, the premises is not
complying with the licensing objective of the protection of children from harm and children in
Gateshead are at risk because of this.

Please
Tick v
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before?
Day Month Year
If Yes, please state the date of that representation 1 9 0 7 2 0 1 7

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them.

ii How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law,

Page 37

- - - -




We may check information provided by you, or informaticn about you provided by a third parly, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them fo check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or o protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Depariments and local

authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Ceouncil nor use informaiion about you for other purposes
uniess the law permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controlier for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want {o know more about what
infermation we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH
Part 3 - Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature Date

[é]/fé( /{//:z\fr??(-?ﬁ

24107117

Capacity
Director of Public Health

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. {Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address {optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Piease list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so,

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178




Page 39



= Ga teshead

Representations On A Current Application of a Review of a Premises Licence
Under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In alf cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

! (insert name) Northumbria Police

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (deiete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen

Post Town Post Code
Gateshead NE39 2BE

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate
Paramijit Singh BHANDAL

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate
00CH01048

PART 2 - DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

fam
Please
Tick v
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) [
a} a person living in the vicinity of the premises ]
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises ]
¢) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises ]
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises O
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) 4
3) a member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below)  [J

Page 40



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable) s

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title {for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

i am 18 years old or over Yes {Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number N

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number {If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION
Name and Address

Central Area Command (Gateshead)
Eidon Square, Floor 1

Central Management Office

Eldon Court, Percy Street

Newcastle upon Tyne NE1 7JB

Telephone Number (if any) 101

E-Mail address (optional)

Page 41




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. the prevention of crime and disorder 4
2, public safety
3. the prevention of public nuisance
4, the protection of children from harm 4

NORTHUMBRIA POLICE are in support of the premises licence review instigated by _Gateshe_aad
Council — Local Weights and Measures Authority. The licensing objectives of prevention of crime
and disorder and protection of children from harm are not being upheid,

The Application
Application for a review of the premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 by Gateshead
Council - Local Weights and Measures Authority on 10/07/17.

Grounds
On 1% June 2017 Mr Paramiit Singh BHANDAL sold four cans of Fosters lager to a 15 year old
volunteer, contrary to section 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003.

Police support of the review -
We note that in addition to the offence committed, there are currently no conditions attached to the

premises licence consistent with the operating schedule.

Northumbria Police wish to support the review process as the licensing objectives of prevention of
crime and disorder and protection of children from harm are being undermined.

Please
Tick
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before?
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

if you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with ozhe.ar inform_aiion held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, o o protect public funds in other ways, as pemitted by law. These third parties include Government Depariments and local
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.

Gateshead Councif is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protaction Act 1998. If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or lhe way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

Page 42
- _ L. o 3




Part 3 - Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representative’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature | David Pickett

Date

11" July 2017

Capacity | Chief Inspector 7106

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Ivana Draper
Licensing Co-ordinator 6544

Post Town

| Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

0191/221 9234

E-maif Address (optional)

licensing@northumbria.pnn.police.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Reguiatory Services, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NES 1HH
Tel: 0191 4333957 or 433 2297

Page 43




Tagd

= Ga teshead
HH COLTEW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and wrilten in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the

completed form for your records.

IWe (insert name)| Tne | icensing Authority

Wish to make representation about the apptication for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High Spen

Post Town: Gateshead Post Code: NE3@ 2BE

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Paramijit Singh Bhandal

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate {if known)
00CHOD1048

PART 2 ~ DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v

1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) |

2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) [

3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) 0

Page 44
- -
. - <&



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title {for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

fam 18 years old or over Yes {Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address {optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional}

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
The Licensing Authority
Civic Centre

Regent Street
Gateshead

Telephone Number (If any)

0191 433 4741

E-Mail address (optional)

licensing@gateshead.gov.uk

-

Page 4

5

o




This representation refates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder o
2, Public Safety &
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance n
4. The Protection of Children From Harm n

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

An underage sale occurred on the premises during a test purchase operation on 1 June 2017. The
alcohol was sold to the Child volunteer by the Premises Licence Holder and DPS Mr Bhandal, this
raises serious concerns about the management of the business and in particular the controls and
training in place to prevent underage sales given the person responsible have themselves sold

alcohol to an underage person.

Monitoring compliance with the promotion of the licensing objectives in relation to this premises is
difficult due to their being very few conditions attached to the Licence. For example the premises
is not currently obliged to operate a chalienge either 21 or 25 policy, they are not obliged to keep

training records, they are not obliged to keep a refusals register nor to have CCTV.

The lack of conditions causes difficulties on the occasions that the premises are inspected as there
is little to inspect. On similar Licences with more up to date conditions Officers can confirm what
training has been undertaken, how often people are refused service due to for example age and

review incidentis by requesting CCTV footage.

The authority reserves the right to add any further information so far as it is considered relevant

prior to the hearing in line with the appropriate Regulations.

Page 46



Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

{Flease read guidance note 2)

The current licence has been in place since 1 July 2005.

The only conditions on the Licence are the Mandatory ones, relating to the supply of alcohol these being the

requirement for a DPS and the requirement for a personal licence to be held by the DPS.

Page 4/



Have you made any representation relating to these premises before?

Please
Tick v

Day

Month

Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

if you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you

made them.

Page 48




a How We Collect And Use Information

The fnformalion coltected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed 1o other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third pariies, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Depariments and focal
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.
Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. if you want (o know imore about what

information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NES 1HH

Page 49



Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Date 26 July 2017

JBradegy | 4
Capacity | On behalf of the Licensing Authority

Signature

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. Arepresentative’'s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH

Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178




= Ga teshead
HH COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

if you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish fo keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

IWe (insert name)

Cilr Julie Simpson

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Sunlea Convenience Stores, High Spen

Post Town Gateshead Post Code

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Sunlea Stores — High Spen — (owner not known)

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate {if known)

1

PART 2 - DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1) A responsible authority (please complete {C) below) 3
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates {please complete (A) below) [0
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) X

Page 51



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION {fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss :J Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)l ChHr

Surname First Names

Julie Simpson }

Yes Xi (Please Tick)

lam 18 years old or over

Current Address —Thornfey Lane, Lockhaugh, Rowlands Gili, Gateshead

Post Town Tyne & Wear Post Code | NE39 -
i

Daytime contact telephone number _

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address
N/A

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS GF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any} [

E-Mail address (optional)

Page 52




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder [
2 Public Safety X[l
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance 0
4, The Protection of Children From Harm x0
 Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1) B

I'am concerned that Sunlea Stores based at High Spen sold alcohol to a young person
under the age of 18 years. | am concerned about the wider implications of this action, the
impact and effect this may have on the surrounding community and danger to the
individual involved. Because the store has been observed delivering the under-age sale of
Fosters lager. | am also concerned that further sales may have taken place without the

authorities knowing about it.

I am concerned about the health and safety of young people and the dangers imposed
through consuming alcohol under age, when a person below the age of 18 years has
publically been able to access alcoholic substances without being the responsible age to

deal with the cause and effect.

| therefore wish to object and express my concern that there should be no further fiquor

licence granted or issued to the above premises.

Page 53



Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation
{Please read guidance note 2)
The actions of the store has not demonstrated their full level of responsibility within the

law, and therefore, cannot support any further application to sell alcohol through a liquor

licence at this particular premises / named persons.




Please

Tick v
Have you made any representation relating to these premises bhefore? NOO
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

if you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them.

N/A

Page 55




9 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties inciude Government Departrents and local
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Councll nor use information about you for other purposes
uniess the law permits us fo.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998, If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NES 1HH

Page 56




Part 3 - Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. {See guidance nofe

4) if signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

f Signature

Jufie Simpson

Date 28/t

Capacity

Locally elected councillor for the winlaton & High Spen ward

representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

As indicated above

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this

Post Town Post Code NE39 1AX

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

—

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in

the grounds for representation, if applicable.
3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A-representative's agent (for exam ple solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they

have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH

Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



}’}W(w Sl A

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Licensing Act 2003
7 January 2016 - 6 January 2021

7 Januan 2048 1

- Page 59



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Foreword by Councitior John McElroy

The Licensing Act has been in {orce now for fen years, and has conlributed 1o a
significant change in how licensable activities are caried on in the Borough.

In Gateshead, bolh the licensed trade and fis patons are, on the whole,
responsible and sensitive to the needs of the communities in which licensed

activities take place.

However, the trend away from drinking in pubs and clubs fo consumption of alcohal
at home presents a different sel of chalienges in terms of minimizing the harms that

can arise.

There has been an increase in the availability and accessibility of alcohol, and a
broadening of the type of premises where it is made available. Gonsequently, there
(s now an increased role for the licensing regime to play in safeguarding the most
vulnerable members of our society.

The licensing regime is not only about the sale and supply of alcohol -~ the
provision of regulaled entertainment and late night refreshment equally present
challenges to ensure that crime, disorder and public nuisance are prevented, public
safety is promoted and children are protected from harm,

There is no single answer to the challenges we will face in the coming months and
years; but the licensing regime is key to giving residents and responsible authorities
an opportunity to have their say on important matters that can impact their
community, and I would encourage everyone 1o ulifise i to its fullest potential.

Strategic Context

The Council's overall vision for Gateshead, as described in Gateshead Strategic
Partnership’s Community Strategy ~ Vision 2030 and the Council's Corporate Plan

is:
“Local people realising their full potential, enjoying the best quality of fife in a
healthy, equal, safe, prosperous and sustainable Gateshead”

The Hcensing of premises plays an important role in realising this vision,
contributing significantly 1o the Economy, Environment, and Health areas contained
within Priority 1 of the Corporate Plan, in providing safe and accessible venues thai
promote healthy fifestyles and contribute to economy of the Borough.

This Policy sets out what this licensing Authority expects of the people that it
authorises 10 carry oul ficensable activities in the Borough of Gateshead.

Applicants and licensees are of course expected to be familiar with the relevani
legislation and the National Guidance issued by the Home Office, but they are also
expected to be familiar with the exigencies of the locality that they operale in. This
applies o everyone seeking fo carry on licensable aclivities in the Borough,
whether they are a large national chain or a small community premises.

7 danuan 2016 32

. - Rage 60

L 3



26

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The promotion of the licensing objectives underping every decision that the
Licensing Authority makes. How the objectives are best promoted can vary from
place to place, and depending on the nalure and scale of the activities that are to
be carried out.  This Policy sets oul the issues thal are of particular reievance or
concern within Galeshead, and the approaches that this Licensing Authority would
expect responsible licensees 10 take info account in their operation,

The Policy links closely with a number of Key plans and strategies produced by the
Council and its partners, as sef out below in the section headed 'Integration with
other legislation, poticies and guidance’.

l.ocal contexi

Gateshead is located on the southern bank of the river Tyne, opposite Newcastle
upon Tyne o the north, and bordering County Durham to  the south,
Northumberland to the west and South Tyneside/Sunderland 1o the easl. It is a
constantly changing berough combining modern faciliies with a {ascinaiing
herifage. The borough stretches almost 13 mites along the south bank of the river
Tyne and covers 55 square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear
authorities.

Gateshead is a borough of contrasts. It has a large urban hub centred around the
main town cenire area in Bridges ward and has a number of smaller urban centres
and busy employment areas such as Biaydon, Whickham, Felling and Birtlay.
However, around two thirds of the borough is rural with numerous small settlements
such as Kibbiesworth, Sunniside, Chopwell and High Spen,

Built on traditional indusiries of mining and heavy engineering, the 1930's saw
diversification through the development of the Team Valley Trading Estate (TVTE),
the first frading estate of its type in the UK, Centrally located far the region the
TVTE has become prominent for trangporl and distribution activiies and is the
borough's most prestigious employment centre, altracting the highest number of
inward commuters to the borough on a daily basis.

The 1970s saw the decline of many of the region's traditional industries. A high
proportion of those who lived in Gateshead worked in these industries, resulting in
unemployment and high levels of deprivation and financial/social exclusion, the
impact of which is stlil being felt today. In the 1980's Gateshead saw the
development of the MetroCentre, now boasting over two million sq it of retail and
leisure floor space, one of the UK's and Europe’s largest shapping cenires.

The urban core, shared with Newcastle, is the focus of regeneration, promoting
growth through the digital economy, knowledge-based businesses and cultural-led
regeneration. Major initiatives such as the Sage Gateshead, BALTIC Centre for
Contemporary Art, Gateshead College and the Gateshead Mittennium Bridge have
all been developed over recent years,

Gateshead has a population of around 200,000 living in 90,600 households. The
population has reduced by around 13,000 since the 1980's but has grown over the
last decade by around 8,000. This growth has been most significant for older age
groups with an 11% increase in 45-84 year olds and an 11% increase in those
aged 65 and over. [n contrast, the number of 0-24 year olds fell slightly by 0.7%

A lanuarny 2014 4

. Page 61 .



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

over the decade. Population projections from the Office for National Stafistics
predict thal this ageing population trend wili continue into the future, becaming
more pronounced as lile expectangy conlinues to increase.

Crime and anti-social behaviour in Gateshead

The number of recorded crimes across the Borough that were linked 1o alcohol hag
increased year on year, with 1,386 alcohoi-related crimes recorded in 2014/15
which was an 11% increase from 2013/14, compared 10 a 7% increase in all crime.,

More than half the alcohol-related crimes in the Borough in 2014/16 were violence
against the person, with significant increases particularly in the number of assaults.
il is notable that whilst incidents of the rost serious violence are still refatively
infrequent, they have more than doubled in the last year. There have also been
significant increases in the numbers of afcohol-related sexua: offences and

burglaries in the Borough in that time.

Temporal profifes show that atmost half of all alcohol-related crimes in the Borough
are reported on Friday lale evenings / Saturday early mornings, Salurday lale
evenings / Sunday early mornings and (to a lesser extent) Sunday late evenings /

Monday early mornings.

Data provided by Northumbria Police enables the Council {0 identify the most
vulnerable locations throughout the Borough in terms of alcohol-related crimes, and
to track trends over time. Information about these areas is contained in ‘Local
Licensing Guidance' documents which are described in further detail below, and
will be available from the Councit’s website and upon request.

Public health in Gateshead

In 2012 the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced public health as a
responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003.

Public health is “the science and ari of promoting and protecting health and well-
being, preventing ill-healith and prolonging life through the organised efforts of
sociely.” The Public Health Outcomes Framework acknowledges that health is
influenced not only by lifestyle choices but also by a range of wider determinants,
including the physical environment, domestic abuse, violent crime and noise

nuisance.

Gateshead Council recognises the impact upon popufation-level health thal alcohol
consumption can cause. While the protection of public health is not a discrete
licensing objective, it can where appropriate permeate each of the licensing

objectives.

tach year Gateshead’s Director of Public Health publishes an Annual Report, the
most recent at the time of writing being published in October 2014, The report
recognises that alcohol is & complex sacial issue which forms part of our everyday
soctal fabric, is a source of pleasure and enjoymen! o many; but is also a
potentially addictive substance which is promoted by powerful commercial forces,
especially to young people. It hightights the growing evidence of rising alcohol

Fdanieans 2016 5

Page 62 |,



52
La
4]

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

harm on the health of people in Gateshead, and locusses on approaches (o
tackiing alcoho! harm.

The reporl idenlifies, for instance, thal:

+ Around one in 5 secondary school / higher education students in Gateshead
admit to drinking alcohot; and

* The number of alcohol specific hospilal admissions for secondary school /
higher education students in Gateshead is mcreasing.

Public health data enables the Council to identify the most vulnerable locations in
the Borough in terms of alcohol-related harm, and lo track trends over time. This
data can be parficularly relevant 1o the protection of children from harm, and may
also assist in the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and to public

safety.

Local Licensing Guidance

Different localities within the Borough have different characters, and challenges,
both of which can change over time depending on a range of factors. To assist
applicanis and licensees in their understanding of local issues that they should be
cognisant of, from time to time the Council publishes and updates ‘Local Licensing
Guidance' documents on its website.

The Local Licensing Guidance provides information about the causes of serious
and chronic concern in these localities. The areas covered by the guidance can
vary depending on the nalure of the problems that are identified, so may refate to
the whole of a particular Ward or for instance to street level. The guidance can
include a wide range of information that is considered to be relevant to those who
seek to carry on licensable activities within the area, for instance;

* The physical environment (including transpost, school walking routes,
blocks of flats, commercial / residential proximity, efc)

* Lxisting licensed premises

* Health data (such as hospital admissions for under-18s, ambulance calls
for alcohol related reasons)

+ Crime and disorder hotspots

¢+ Known areas of congregation

* Local inifiatives (such as Pubwatch, Offwatch, Community  Alcohol
Partnerships etc)

* lLocal concerns about the promotion of the licensing objectives (including
from Ward Members, community leaders, GPs, schools, efc)

The Local Licensing Guidance will be produced by the Councit’s Public Mealth team
with the input of Responsible Authorities and other stakeholders as appropriate;
and presented to and approved by the Council's full Licensing Committee.

It is recommended that applicants and licensees have regard to these documents
when considering their operating schedule. in particular, where the Local Licensing
Guidance identifies measures that it is believed will help 1o promote the licensing
objectives in respect of cerlain ficensable activities due 1o the issues that have been

7 lapuar. 2005 ]

Page 63



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

&
o

o
W

identified, it an applicant or ficensee chooses not to adeopt those measures this may
resull in representations being made.

Legal Context

This Stalement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with {he
provisions of the Act and the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section
182 of the Act,

The Licensing Authority is responsible for:

* the licensing of licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act)

v ensuring that those who are authorised under the Act comply with the
requirernents; and

* ensuring that only those who are duly authorised to carry out licenzsable
activities do so.

This document sets aut the Licensing Authority’s policy as to how i will fulfil itg
obfigations and achleve its strategic aims in this respect,

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Act itsell, the Home Offica
Guidance, and the other policies and guidance that are referred o in this document.

This Licensing Authorily regards each of the Licensing Objective to be of equal
importance.

This document sets out the policies the Licensing Authority wil generally apply to
promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions under the Act, and when
addressing non-compliance with the Act itself or any authorisations issued under
the Act. The Licensing Autherity will consider deviating from the policy on a case by
case basis, where it befieves it 10 be appropriate and proporlionate in all the
relevant circumstances.

Integration with other legisiation, policies and guidahce

Anyone who is or who seeks to be authorised under the Act to carry out licensable
activities in the Borough of Gateshead should be aware of the other legislation,
policies and guidance that may apply to their business. Failure 1o comply with other
legistation and/or regulatory regimes can indicate that a licensee is irresponsible,

which may call into question their ability to adequately promote the Licensing
Objectives.

Although from the perspective of the business proprietor, there may be an element
of crossover between ficensing and other regimes, they are separale and are
reated as such by the Council.

Applicants and licensess need to be aware of and have regard to:

* Gateshead Strategic Partnership’s Community Strategy ~ Vision 2030
+ the Gateshead Local Plan

¢ Substance Misuse Strategy

»  Cuiture Strategy

7 danuan 2014 7

Page 64



_(_r"l
iy

5.5

56

57

<«
(el

5.9

« Gateshead Transport Stralegy & Tyne & Wear Local Transport Plan
« The Local Government Declaration on Aicohol signed by Galeshead Council
inJune 2015

The Licensing Authority will seck lo achieve integration with refevant strategies and
their aims in its decision making.

Human Rights

The Licensing Authority wilt have paricular regard 1o the following relevant
provisions of the European Convention an Human Rights:

+ Adicle 6 that in determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is
entitied to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal esiablished by law

*+ Arlicle 8 that everyone has the righl 1o respect for their home and private iife;
and

*+ Arficle 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled 1o the peaceful

enjoyment of their possessions.

Equality and Diversity

Applicants and licensees should be aware of their obligations under the Equality
Act 2010 and the characteristics protected by the legislation which are:

+ Age

* Disability

+ (Gender reassignment

¢ Marriage and civil partnership
« Pregnancy and malernity

« Race

* Religion and belief

« Sex;and

Sexual orientation

ltis expected that responsible ficensees will be sensitive 1o the needs of their varied
customer base and prepared to make reasonable adjusiments to accommodate
those needs,

The Equality Act 2010 also requires the Licensing Authority 1o have due regard to
the need tc eliminale discrimination, harassment and viclimisation; advance
equality of opportunity; and foster good relations between people with different
protected characleristics. Each application will be considered with 1his in mind.

Crime and disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of
measures for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on the Council,
Northumbria Police and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the
exercise of all their duties. The reduction of crime and disorder is integral to this
Council's approach 1o the Licensing Act.

Jdantiane 2016 -2

Page 65



5.11

.12

Data proteciion

The Licensing Authority will process personal information in accordance with the
Data Protection Act 1998, The personal details provided by applicants will be held
on a database and where the law aliows, may be shared with other depariments
within the Councif to update details they hoid. The Licensing Authority may also be
required to disclose personal information {o third paries (such as Palice,
Department for Work and Pensions or Audit Commission for the National Fraud
Initiative) for the purposes of preventing or detecting crime or apprehending or
prosecuting offenders.

Local Governmeni Declaration on Alcohol

Gateshead Council has signed the Loca! Government Declaration on Alcohol. and
has commitied to:

« Promoating the introduction of greater regulations around the price, promaotion
and availabiiity of alcohol

* Calling for changes to the Licensing Act in favour of local authorities and
communities, 10 enable greater control on the number, density and
availability of alcoho! according 1o local requirements

= Putling public health and community safely at the forefront of public policy-
making about alcohol

* Making best use of existing licensing powers to ensure effective
management of the night-time economy; and

* [Raising awareness of the harm caused by alcchol to individuals and our
communities.

It is recognised that the regime under the Licensing Act is only one part of the
framework needed to achieve these aims; that in terms of alcoho! the Act only
regulates its sale and supply — nol its consumption; and that the regime cannot be
utilised where the Council's aims do not pertain to the objectives set oul in the Act.

However the licensing regime has proven fo be an effective tool in Gateshead for
the control of price, promotion and availability of alcohol:

Price

The sale / supply of cheap alcohol can lead 1o its over-consumplion which in furn
can undermine the licensing objectives particutarly in respect of the prevention of
crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm. This Licensing
Authority has imposed and will continue to impose mirimum unit price reguirements
where appropriate to promole the licensing objectives, and as part of a range of
measures 1o tackle identified concerns. For instance, alcohol can be ‘cheap’ not
only due to its price but also due 1o its strength, Where appropriaie this Licensing
Authority will aiso impose conditions to control the sale of certain types of product,
such as ‘super strength’ ciders, spirits, efc.

Promotion

The Governmenl has imposed certain mandatory conditions to prohibit
frrespansible drinks promotions where the consumption is intended to take place on
the premises. This Licensing Authority will impose further conditions on licences

A danuan 2014 o

Page 66

-



514

516

5.17

where it is appropriate and proportionate lo do so, which wil depend on the
individual circumstances. For instance, conditions can be imposed 10 prevent
promations which are aimed at young peeple particularly in the vicinity of schools
and other locations atlended by children, and promotion of potentially dangerous
alcoholic products such as cocklails containing liquid nitrogen.  Gateshead
Licensing Authority's expeciations with respect 10 ihe promotion ol alcohol in off
licensed premises are set out in 8.18 balow,

Place
There are a range of measures that can assist in controlling the avaitabilily of

alcohol in defined focalilies where there is appropriate evidence {0 support the
restriction. These include;

* Cumulative impact policies
¢ Night lime levy
« Early morning restriction orders

The evidential basis to consider implementing any of these measures in Gateshead
has not yet been put forward, however if evidence stpports thelr implemeniation In
the future this will he duly considered.

Public Space Prolection Orders

The folfowing locations have been designated as alcohol exclusion areas:

Galeshead

at all of the Metro stations in the borough
Birtley

Whickham

Ryton

Winlaton

> * & 2 » g

This means that within the exclusion zones it is an offence to refuse to compiy with
the reasonable request of a Police Constable or authorised officer 1o stop
consuming alcohol or to hand over alcohol for confiscation. Licensed premises {and
their curtitages) are excluded from the scope of the Orders while licensable
activities are authorised to take place.

Social Responsibility

The Portman Group has produced a code of practice on the naming, packaging and
promotion of alcoholic drinks. Licensees that sell or supply alcohol are expected to
have regard to the code of practice as amended from time to time.
hiip://www.portmangroup.org, uk/docs/delauli-source/code -of-

praclice/7609 por02 code of praclice final pdi

Pubwatch

A Pubwatch scheme has been in existence in the Borough for some time. Il is fed
by Northumbria Police, and provides a forum for licensees to gain support from the
Police, the Council and other licensees to tackle the problems associated with

7 donuam. 2014

[T
i

Page 67



5.19

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

individuals who cause disturbance, disorder, use drugs or use or threalen violence
in and around licensed premises. By acting collectively in excluding such people
from a number of premises in the area, this means that the problem is not simply
moved from one pub {o the next. Pubwalch schemes have been found 10 be
effective tools in tackling anti-social behaviour in many areas where the schemes
are weli run and there is a significant level of patticipation by ficence holders in the
borough. The Gateshead Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2013-2015 recoOgNises
the importance of the Pubwatch scheme and envisages i being used to share and
develop best praclice and as a forum for training.

Regional and nalional working

The Licensing Authoiily participates in regional working through the North East
Strategic Licensing Group, which is comprised of representatives of each of the
twelve North East Licensing Authorities, and forms part of the North East Public
Protection Partnership.

The Licensing Authority also works closely with Balance — the North East Alcohol
Office, to achieve an integrated approach across the region and with key partners
such as the Police.

From the national perspective, representatives of the Licensing Authority participate
in the Local Government Association's Licensing Policy Forum, and the Licensing
Special Area of Activity for Lawyers in Local Gavernment.

General Principles of the Policy

Each application will be determined on ifs merits having regard to this Policy,
Guidance under Section 182 of the Act, the Act itself and supporting Regulations.

The Licensing Authority considers:

* 1he effective and responsible management of premises
* Instruction, training and supervision of staff; and
» ihe adoption of best practice

to be amongst the most important contral measures for the achievement of all the
licensing objectives. For this reason, the Licensing Authority will expect these
elements 1o be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant's
operating schedule.

Applicants who do not clearly demonstrate how they intend to address thess issues
in their operating schedules should expect their applications fo be objected to,
including by the Licensing Authority.

Also, licensees whose practice does not meet this expectation may have their
licence reviewed, and as above this may be triggered by the Licensing Authority
itself.

7 danuany 2016 34

Page 68



7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Licensing Objectives

Applicants will need to provide evidence 1o the Licensing Authority that, in respect
of each of the four licensing objeclives, suitable and sufficient measures, as
detailed in their Operating Schedule, will be implemented and maintained, and will
be relevant to the individual style and characieristics of their premises and events,

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will expect fo see evidence that the following specific
maliers that impact on crime and disorder have been addressed in the Operating
Schedule of the premises:

« The capability of the person who is in charge to run the premises during
trading hours or when Regulated Entertainment is provided 1o effectively and
responsibly manage and supervise the premises, including associated open
areas

* The steps to be taken in the absence of the Designated Premises
Supetvisor to effectively manage the business.

+ The steps taken or to be taken 1o ensure that appropriate instruction, training
and supervision is given to those employed or engaged in the premises fo
prevent incidents of crime and disorder

+ The measures taken or to be taken to raise staff awareness and discourage
and prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs on the premises

* The features currently in place or planned for physical security af the
premises, such as lighting outside the premises

* The policies that have been determined in respect of adoption of appropriate
existing and future best praclice guidance (eg Safer Clubbing, the National
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toclkit, etc)

* Any arrangements which the ficence holder proposes to work in partnership
with the Council, police and other traders in establishing a method of ¢o-
ordinating closing times 1o prevent crowds emerging from premises ai the
same lime and to prevent migration batween premises with different closing
times

« Any appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the prevention
of violence or public disorder

The extent to which the above matters need o be addressed will be dependent on
the individual styie, characteristics and location of the premises, and proposed
events and activities. In general however, the Licensing Authority will expect more
comprehensive measures to be in place at late night entertainment venues or in
premises with a hislory of crime and disorder issues.

In such premises appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the
prevention of violence or public disorder may include:

4 danary 20116 a2

Page 69

-



7.6

7.7

+ Provision of effective CCTV both within and around premises
+  Employment of SIA ficensed door staff
* Provision of toughened or plastic glasses

»  Procedures for risk assessing drinks promotions and events such as ‘happy
hours’ for the potential to cause crime and disorder and plans for minimising
such risks

The Licensing Authority wili have particular regard to representations frem the
Police in deciding whether the above issues have been adequzlely addressed. it
will not normally grant an application where representafions indicate a potential
negative impact on crime and disorder, unless the applicant can demonstrale

compelling reasons why the application should be approved in the light of these
concems.

Public Safety

The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the
impact that the following factors may have on public safety:

+ The occupancy capacity of the premises

* The age, design and layout of the premises, including means of escape in
the event of fire

* The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sate or
supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and including
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent niature

* The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the hours
when licensable activities are provided, if different)

¢ Custemer profile (eg age, disability)

« The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines,
elc

The following examples of control measures are given {o assist applicants who may
need {0 take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particuiar type of premises and/or activities:

+ Suitable and sufficient risk assessments

+ Effective and responsible management of the premises

* Provision of a sufficient number of peopie employed or engaged to secure
the safely of the premises and patrons

2 dannancInii A3

Page 70

L3



* Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged o secure the safety of premises and natrons

* Adoplion of best practice guidance (eg Guide to Fire Precautions in Existing
Places of Entertainment and like premises, The Event Safety Guide, Safety
in Pubs published by the BBPA, and the Safety Guidance for Street Adts,
Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances published by
Independent Street Arts Network!

* Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

« Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels

* Implementation of crowd management measures

* Proof of regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures,
appliances, systems elfc petlinent to safety)

Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.8

7.9

7.10

The Licensing Authority interprets ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense, and lakes it
1o include such issues as noise, light, odour, fitter and anti-social behaviour, where
these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal
activity in an area.

The Licensing Authority will normally apply stricter conditions, including controls on
licensing hours, where licensed premises are in residential areas.

The Licensing Authority will expect lo see tha applicants have considered the
impact that the following facters may have on the potential for public nuisance:

* The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise
sensilive premises

* The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours

* The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities are
of & temporary or permanent nature and whether they are {¢ b held inside
o outside premises

* The design and layout of premises and in parlicular the presence of noise
limiting features

» The occupancy capacity of the premises

* The availability of public transport

* ‘wind down period' between the end of the licensable activities and closure
of the premises, i.e. allowing patrons o remain in the premises for a period

after licensable activities have ceased, so that people do not disperse en
masse

Fdanuann 016 14

Page 71



[

last admission time

711 The following examples of control measures are given o assist applicants who may
need {0 take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their

particular type of premises andfor activities:

effective and responsible management of the premises

appropriate ingfruction, lraining and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidenls of public nuisance eg to ensure customers

leave quietly

operating hours for all or parts (eg garden areas) of premises, including such
malters as deliveries

adoption of best practice guidance (eg Good Praclice Guide on the Control
of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institule of A.coustics,
Licensed Propetty: Noise, published by BBPA)

installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acousiic lobbies and sound
limitation devices

management of people, including stalf, and traftic (and resulting queues)
laison with public transport providers

siting of external lighting including security lighting

management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

effective ventilation sysiems to prevent nuisance from odour

Protection of Children from Harm

7.12 The protection of children is an important issue and the licensing regime has a
fundamentat role in achieving this. The protection of children from harm includes

7.3

moral,

psychological and physical harm and applicams are expected to

demonsirate that such faciors have been considered in their cperating schedules.

Applicants should expect to receive objections in respect of the protection of
children from harm, and licensees should expect their licence to be reviewed,

wheare:

L ]

ihere have been convictions for serving alcohot to minors or the premises
have a reputation for facilitating underage drinking

there is a known association with drug taking or dealing

there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

Zdanua 2015 A&

Page 72



714

715

7.16

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Licensees will be expecied to prevent children from viewing f{ilms 1hal are
unsuitable because of the age classification of the film that has been imposed by
the British Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Anyone intending to provide staff for the supervision of activities for under 18s will
be expected to carry out enhanced criminal record checks on all such persons, and
to keep a register which should be avaifable 1o the Police or autherised Gouncil
officer on request. Applicants who do not pul these measures in place should
expect objections to be made o their application.

Where applicants intend to provide any age restricted goods or services il s
expecied that they will apply the same standards of age verification in respect of all
age restricted goods or services, thal slaff will be regularly frained, and that
appropriate records are kept of training and refusals.

Types of activity that may heighten concern as to the promotion of the
licensing objectives

it has been the experience of this Licensing Authority over the last ten years since
the Licensing Acl came Into force that there are certain types of licensable activity
that tend to require a greater degree of control or a particular emphasis on cerlain
control measures in order that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted.

Aduit entertainment

The ferm ‘adull entertainment’ is not defined in the Licensing Act, but it is taken in
this policy to refer to activities and form of entertainment that may be unsuilable for
children to participate in or o observe. Common examples of adult entertainment
include striplease, lap dancing and other forms of dancing /entertainment with a
sexual content. Other types of activity may also be ‘adult entertainment' such as the
showing of films that have been certified 18/, lotal fighting, mixed martial arts, and
demonstrations and participation in activities containing efements of bondage,
discipline, domination, submission, sadism and/or masochism. This kst is clearly
not exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will consider each application on ils
merits,

Although adult enterlainment is permitted by the Licensing Act, it is necessary that
ficensees set out details of the activities they intend to take place in their operating
schedule, so that the Licensing Authority, responsible bodies and others may take
appropriate steps to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are not undermined. As
such it is important that applicants complete box ‘N’ of their application form, and
provide as much detail as possible regarding the nature of the proposed activities.

If applicants do not complete box ‘N' it is the policy of this Licensing Authorily to
impose a condition on the licence / certificate (if issued), consistent with the
operaling schedule, that prohibits adult entertainment at the premises. If licensess /
certificate holders are then found to have provided adult entertainment in breach of
this condition, they may be prosecuted and/or the licence / certificate may be
reviewed which could lead to the imposition of further conditions, suspension or

revocation.

7danuane 20348 16

Page 73

-y



8.12  Applicants and existing ficensees / certificate holders should be aware that {he

8.13

8.14

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

presence of gaming machines in licensed premises is considered to be “adult
enierfainment” and requires notification 16 the licensing authority in box “N" of the
application form otherwise they will not be permitied, as it is the policy of this
licensing authority 1o add a condition, consisient with the operaling schadule of
each premises where box "N" is nol completed, prohibiting adull entertainment at
the premises as set out in guidance note 8 of the respective application forms,

Film classification

Where the Licensing Authority is requested to classify a fiim for exhibition within the
Licensing Authority's area, il will do so it the film has not been classified by the
British Board of Filrm Classification, or such classification is not pending.

When an applicant submits a film for classitication, they shouid provide a copy of
the film to the Licensing Officer, and should indicate the rating that they consider
appropriale. The Licensing Officer shall consull with Northumbria Police and the
Local Safeguarding Children Board. The applicant should provide the copy of the
film at least 28 days in advance of the proposed screening, if the applicant is
unable 10 provide a copy of the film in DVD format or via a websie then they should
liaise with the Licensing Officer to arrange for a screening of the film for the relevant

bodies as above.

The Licensing Authority shall have regard to any representations received from the
Local Safeguarding Children Board and Northumbria Police, The Licensing
Authority shall have regard lo the ciassification standards applied by the British
Board of Film Classification. The Licensing Authority shall also have regard to {but
shall not be bound by) any classification given 1o the film by another Licensing

Authority.

Where a relevant represeniation is received, the classification of the film shal be
determined by a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee.

Alcohol sales

1 is expected that applicants will set out in their operating schedule the measures
they will take to ensure that a writlen record is kept of all the names and addresses
of persons who are authorised 1o sell or supply aicohol at all times, and that the
written record is made available to Police and/or Council officers immediately upon

request.

It is expected that premises ficensed for the sale of alcoho! for consumption off the
premises will adopt responsible marketing practices and concern may be
heightened whare alcohot is promoted in such a way as o encourage people 1o
drink more than they would ordinarily do and in a manner that doesn't promote the
licensing objectives, for example quantity based discount promotions and display
and promotion of aicohol products in multiple positions in a premises.

it is expected that applicants who intend to sell or supply alcohol by delivery or
collection of prepaid orders will include provision in their operating schedules 1o set
out how they will ensure that they do not:

7 dapuiary 2016 A8

Page 74

L3



8.20

a.21

8.22

8,23

¢ serve aleohol to a person whe appears 10 be diunk

¢ serve alcohol {0 a person who it is believed will pass { on (o persons undar
18 years old

» take paymenl for the alcohol al the place where i is served — sales should
be pre-paid only

itis also expected that applicants wilt;
* operate an age verification policy of al leasi a Challenge 25 standard
* only deliver 0 residential addresses
« only stock delivery vehicles with alcohol that has been pre-ordered

¢ verily that the person that the alcohol is served 10 is the person who has
ordered it

« only make sales where the purchase price is at least £25 and/or the
minimum unit price of the alcohol is not less than £1 per unit

Petlroi siations / garagsas

The Licensing Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcohot from premises used
primarily as garages. The Section 182 guidance states that premises are used
primarily as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following:

¢ the retailing of petrof
e 1he retailing of derv

* the sale of motor vehicles; and

* the maintenance of motor vehicles

It is expected that applicants for premises ficences for premises where any of these
aclivities take place will set out in their operating schedule that they witl submit
sales data on at least a six monthly basis showing:

¢ the number of purchases of fuel alens

« the number of purchases of fuel and other goods

» the number of purchases of oiher goods alone, and
« turnover for each of these type of purchases.

Takeaways

The Licensing Authorily will generally not permit the sale of alcohal from takeaway’
premises that are licensed for late night refreshment, due 10 the inherent potential
for late night alcohol fuelled crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour and the
difficulties of addressing such behaviour where the consumption of the alcoho!l and
associated behaviour lakes place away from the premises themselves, often in
residential areas.  Applicants seeking approval to sell alcohol from ‘takeaway’

Fodaruar.2014 A8

Page /5



8.24

9.
9.1

9.2

premises will need to clearly demonstrate how they will ensure that their activilies
will not lead 1o such problems.

Qutside areas

Where premises inctude an outside area it is expected that the operating schedule
will set out how the applicant will address:

¢ The provision of appropriale bins and olher receptacles for filter generated
by patrons

+ Measures to reduce the amount of noise generated by patrons, pariicularly
late at night. This may include door supervision, closure of outside areas
aller a particular time, restiicting re-admission to the premises after a
particular time, elc

* Provision and placement of appropriate street furniture to prevent persons
‘spilling oul” onto public highway in the vicinity of the premises

¢ Provision of CCTV covering entrances and exits, external aregas, and
surrounding public highways

Licensing Hours

It is expected that premises whose primary activity is off icence sales will not
normally be open between 23:00 and 07:60 hours. Applicants wishing to operale
beyond 23:00 hours will need to demonstrate to the salisfaction of the Licensing
Authority, in their operating schedule, that there will be no significant disturbance to
members of the public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity
around the premises concerned. Opening hours beyond 23:00 hours will generally
be considered to be more acceptable for premises in commercial or lourist areas
with high levels of public transport availability, rather than premises in
predominately residential areas.

When considering applications, in respect of hours of operation, the Licensing
Authority will take the following inlo consideration:

« Whether the premises is located in a predominantly retail or entertainment
area

+ The nature of the proposed activities to be provided in the premises

* Whether there are any arrangements fo ensure adequale availability of
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles and appropriaie places for
picking up and seiting down passengers

»  Whether theres is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessibie to

the premises, and in places where the parking and use of vehicles will not
cause demonsirable adverse impact to local residents

-barusare. 2016 iy

Page 76



9.3

10.

'S

10.2

10.3

10.4

*  Whether the operating scheduie agreed with Council Officers indicates that
the applicant is taking appropriate sleps to comply with the ficensing
objfective of preventing public nuisance

»  Whelher the licensed activily, particularty if located in areas of the highest
levels of recorded crime, may result in a reduction or increase in crime or

anti-social behaviour

*  Whether the licensed activities are fikely to cause adverse impact especially
on local residents, and that, il there is a potential to cause adverse impact,
appropriate measures will be put in place o prevent it.

* Whether there will be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from
lhese or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area

In the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Licensing
Authority wili normally expect the hours during which alcohol is sold to maich the
normal frading hours during which other sales take place, in order o reduce the
potential for disturbance or disorder.

Operating Schedules

Operating scheduies should set out the ficensable aclivities that are intended to be
carried out and how it is intended that this happens. Operating schedules shoulg
be sufficiently detaited and clear for interested parties and responsible authorities to
understand how the applicant or licensee will promote the licensing objectives,

When considering the promotion of the licensing objectives, applicants and
licensees should have due regard to the context of the focality that they seek o
operate in, and be mindful of any particular concerns that relate 1o thai locality.

For instance, applicants and licensees are expected to have regard to any Local
Licensing Guidance in respect of the locality they propose to serve.

Applicants are expected to ensure that their operating schedule enables the
Licensing Authority, responsible authoritios and interested parties to understand:

*  What licensable activities are intended 1o be carried oul

* When licensable activities will be carried out — i.e. between what hours, on
what days and at what times of year

*  When the premises will be open 1o the public for non-licensed activities

*  Whether alcohol is intended to be sold for consumption off the premises
(including where it will be delivered to cusiomers)

*  (Where the sale or supply of alcohol is intended at premises with a Premises
Licence) who the Designated Premises Supervisor will be and what his / her
address ig

7 dapuan. 2016 23

. Page 77 .



0.5

11,

12.

121

122

¢ What sleps will be taken to promote the Licensing Objectives.

It is recommended that applicants conlact responsible authorilies when preparing
operating schedules to discuss any relevant concerns.

Designated Premises Supervisor

Designaled Premises Supervisors have an important rale to play in ansuring thal
the measures 1o promote the licensing objectives that are sel out in an aperating
schedule are put inlo practice on a day to day basis.

Where there is a requirement for premises to have a Designated Premises
Supervisor, it is expected that the person will be a key person related o the
premises, so thal matters arising can be dealt with as quickly as possible,

it is expecled that a Designated Premises Supervisor will have day to day
responsibility for running the premises and will be present at the premises at least
50% of the time in a seven day week thal the premises are open for the carrying on

of licensable activities.

Where the Designated Premises Supervisor is not available af the pramises for
whatever reason, the Licensing Autherity wili expect an individual to be nominated
as a point of contact who will have details of where the Designated Premises

Supervisor can be contacted.

Where there are problems associated with the running of a premises that stem from
the DPS's performance of that role, they may be removed from the role by the

Licensing Sub-Committee.

Conditions

Whilst the Licensing Act sets cut the regulatory framework that applies to all
licensees, conditions can be added to individual licences to prescribe how the
licensable activities are to be carried out having regard to all the relevant individual

circumstances.
There are three types of condition:

° mandatory conditions imposed by the Secretary of Staie — applicants and
licensees are expected to comply with the relevant mandatory conditions
that apply to the activities they carry out, and to be aware that these
mandatory conditions change from time to time. The Home Office issued
guidance in respect of these mandatary conditions in QOctober 2014:

hitps Awww.gov.uk/government/uploadsisystem/uploads/attachment
data/tile/350507/2014-08-29 MC Guidance vi 0.pdf,

* condilions imposed voluntarily by the applicant / licensee — these
conditions will be consistent with the applicant / licensee's operating
schedule, although the wording may be amended 10 ensure clarity and
enforceability. Applicants and licensees should note that in fine with this
Policy, in certain cases the Licensing Authority will assume unless

7 danuary. 2016 22

Page 78



informed otherwise 1hat applicants are volunteering conditions.  For
instance, as above where an applicant does nel indicale an intention 1o
provide adull entertainment by ticking box ‘N’ on their application form, it
will be assumed that they are volunteering a condition not {o provide
adult entertainment at the premises; and

» conditions imposed al a hearing — the Licensing Sub-Commiftee may
impose conditions on a licence where it considers it appropriate to do so.
Any such conditions wili be appropriate 1o the promotion of the hcensing
objeclives and proportionate to the probiems that the Sub-Committee find
in refation 1o the premises.

12.3 The Licensing Authority does not impose ‘standard’ conditions on licences, but

13.

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

there are certain faclors thal most premises thatl carry out cerlain licensabie
aclivities should take into accounl. A pool of model conditions is set out in
Appendix 1, which applicants shouid consider when preparing their operating
schedule.

When things go wrong

Complaints about licensed premises

The Licensing Authorily will investigate complainis about both licensed premises
where licensable activities are taking place but not in accordance with the selevant
authorisation; and unlicensed premises whare licensable aclivities are taking place
without authorisation.

Complainants will usually, in the first instance, be encouraged to raise the
complaint directly with the licensee or business concerned, as this can often be the
quickest and most effective way for the person carrying on the licensable activity to
undersiand the negative impac! of the aclivily.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will initially endeavour to seek a
resolution through informal means.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority may pass any complainl on for
investigation by any other statutory agency under whose enforcement responsibility
the complaint falls.

Falling to comply with the Licensing Act

The Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services, aimed at safeguarding
the environment and the community and at providing a ‘level playing field" on which
businesses can fairly trade. The administration and enforcement of the licensing
regime is one of these services. The BRDO has published a Reguiators’ Code,
which the Councit complies with:

hitps./iwww.gov.uk/govermment/publications/requlators-code

The Council will base its enforcement activities around the principles of
consistency, iransparency and proporiionality.

7 danuan 2016 23

Page 79



13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

The enforcement policy proposes that a graduated response is taken where
offences against licensing legislation are found or where licence conditions have
been contravened. An isolated administrative offence may be dealt with for
example by way of a written warning whilst more serious offences which have
either been committed over a period of time or which jeopardise public safety may
result in a referral for prosecution.

The Council will seek to work actively with the Police, Fire & Rescue Service,
Trading Standards and any other relevant authority to enforce the licensing
legistation. This may include carrying out test purchases, inspections of licensed
premises, investigating complaints about licensed premises and investigating
allegations of unlicensed premises. Such a partnership approach is intended to
prevent duplication of effort, maximise the potential for confrolling crime and
disorder at premises and to ensure compliance when relevant conditions are
appropriate. Gateshead Council has approved the Northumbria Police Joint
Enforcement Protocol, which will encourage a consistent approach to enforcement
throughout the Licensing Authorities within the Northumbria Police area.

Inspections will take place at the discretion of the Council and its partner agencies
and will be concentrated on areas of need. A light touch inspection regime will be
employed for well managed and maintained premises with a targeted and
graduated inspection and enforcement regime for problem and high-risk premises.

Where possible and appropriate, the Licensing Authority and its partner agencies
will give early warning to licence holders of any concerns about problems occurring
at premises associated with the licensing objectives

13.10 The Licensing Authority will carry out its responsibilities for enforcement so as 1o

promote the licensing objectives.

Reviews

13.11 Interested parties and responsible authorities may seek a review of a premises

licence or club premises certificate if they believe that the current operation under
the licence or certificate is harmful to one or more of the Licensing Objectives.

13.12 Where an application to review a licence or certificate is received by the Licensing

Authority, it should be accompanied by any relevant supporting information,
documentation, etc. If the application is relevant, and (if made by an interested
party) is not frivolous, vexatious or repetitive, a hearing before the Licensing
Authority’s Sub Committee will be held. Where appropriate the parties may be able
to hold discussions with a view to reaching an agreement on steps that can be
taken to improve the position.

13.13 When a hearing before the Sub Committee takes place, the Sub Commitiee wili

consider alt relevant information presented to it, and decide what course of action is
appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. There are a range of
responses that are open to the Sub Committee on a review application. The Sub
Committee may —

s Take no further action
e Add or modify conditions on the licence or certificate

7 January 2016 24

Page 80



¢ Exclude a licensable aclivity from the licence or certificale

* Remove the designated premises supervisor

* Suspend the licence or certificate for a period not exceeding three monihs
*  Revoke the licence or cerlificate.

13.14 The review process is intended to enable the Licensing Authority to take
appropriate timely measures to promote the Licensing Objectives in respect of
individual premises. A review can take place even if it would be disproportionale to
revoke a licence or certificate, as some lesser measure can be laken, as above.

13.15 Also, because the review process is inlended to address the future conduct of the
licence holder, a review can take place regardless of any other measures that may
be open 1o the interesled parly or responsible body. For instance, if a licence holder
is found 1o have sold age restricted products to a minor, it is not necessary for a
prosecution {or indeed a successtul prosecution) to take place in respect of that
sale before a review is brought, as the review would consider the steps appropriate
1o prevent future underage sales,

Summaury reviews

13.16 The Police may request a summary review in serious cases of crime and disorder,
and in which case within 48 hours of the application the Licensing Authority will
consider whether any interim stops are required pending completion of the review
process. This may include immediate suspension of the relevant licence.

14. Delegation and Decision Making

14,1 The Council has established a Licensing Committee to administer ils functions
under the Licensing Act 2003. Powers and functions have also been delegated to
Licensing Sub-Committees and officers in order to provide a speedy, efficient and
cost effective service 1o all parties involved in the licensing process.

14.2 Many of the decisions and functions are largely administrative in nature such as the
grant of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and
certificates where no representations have been made. These will be delegated 1o
Council officers. All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for
information to the next Licensing Committee meeting,

14.3  Applications where there are relevant representations will be deall with by the
Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee — unless such representations are considered
irelevant, frivolous or vexatious or unless the Licensing Authority, the applicant and
everyons who has made representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary
(usually after successful mediation).

14.4  The table given below sets out the delegation of decisions and functions of the
Licensing Committee, Sub-Committees and officers. The various delegations
include delegation to impose appropriale conditions,

14.5 This scheme of delegations is withoul prejudice to the right of relevant parties to

refer an application to a Licensing Sub-Committee or the full Licensing Commitiae if
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

Adpnuane 205

o
n

Rage 81



146 Unless there are compelling reasons 1o the contrary, the Licensing Authority will
require the Licensing Committee or any of ils sub-cominitteas 1o meet in public -
although Members can retire into private session to consider their decision. A public
announcement of the decision will be made af the end of the hearing 1ogether with
clear, cogent reasons for the decision having due regard 1o the Human Rights Act
1998, he four licensing objeclives and all other tegislation,

The Licensing Commitiee will be made up of 15 members and Sub-Committees of
three who will hear any relevant represemtations from authorised persens,
responsible authorities and interested parties in the form of a hearing.

14,7

14.8 Where a function is delegated to an officer, that officer wiif be responsible for iiaising

between the applicant, interested parties and the responsible authorities 1o ensure
that any licence granted is subject 1o the appropriate conditions. Where objeciions
are made then the officer will once again liaise with the applicant, interested parties
and the responsible authorities to see if a ‘setliement’ is possible 10 overcome the
objections without the need for the maller 1o go before the Sub-Commitiee.

The Sub-Committee will determine each case before it on its individual merits,

14.9
However, in determining the application the Sub-Committee will consider:

* & & 9

14.10 Delegation of functions:

The case and evidence presented by all parties
The promolion of the four licensing objectives
Guidance issued by Central Government

The Licensing Authority's own statement of Licensing Policy

Matter o be
deait with

Full
Commitiee

Sub-Committee

Sfffcars

Consideration of
reports 1o the
commiltee

Six monthly

Approval of new
/ updated Local
Licensing
Guidance

Six monthly

~ Application for
_bersonal licence

i representation is made

made

Application for
Personal
Licence with
unspent
convictions

All cases

Application for
Premises
Licence / Club
Premises
Certificate

if a relevant
representation made

If no refevant
repraesentation is
mage

Application for a
Provisional

J

If a relevant
representation made

if no relevant
representation is |

. Page 82

Jdanuae 2006 26



k.
i

Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2017

Page 83



Contents

1. Introduction 1
2. The licensing objectives 6
3. licensable activities 14
4, Personal licences 21
5. Who needs a premises licence? 34
6. Club premises certificates 39
7. Temporary Event Notices (TENSs) 42
8. Applications for premises licences 48
9. Determining applications 66
10.  Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates 75
11. Reviews 87
12.  Summary reviews 93
13.  Appeals 101
14.  Statements of licensing policy 104
15.  Licence fees 117
16. Regulated entertainment 119
17, t-arly morning alcohol restriction orders 137
Page 84



1.

Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at

www legistation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

1.1

licensing objectives and aims

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

*

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection of chiidren from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.

They include:

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local autherities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 [ 1

Page 85

- -



The guidance

1.6

Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State musl issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7

1.8

This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. Itis a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to' guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 86



Licensing policies

1.1 Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

1.12  However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard fo this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities
1.13  For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

+ The sale by retail of alcohol;

+ The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

+ The provision of regulated entertainment; and

» The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions
1.14  The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

+ Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

+ Club premises certificate ~ to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

+ Temporary event notice — to carry out ficensable activities at a temporary event.

+ Personal licence — to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

General principles

1.15  If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only {o conditions
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 3

Page 87



Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as
"must”, “shall” and “will" is encouraged. Licence conditions:

+ must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
must be precise and enforceable;

« must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve,

+ should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

» must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

» should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case;

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legisiation;

+ should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

» cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

« should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority's statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

1.18

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

4 I Revised Guidance issued under section 182 Tyhe Liceés'gg Act 2003
age

- -



Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

L

The Gambling Act 2005

The Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Noise Act 1996

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005
The Regutatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Equality Act 2010

The Immigration Act 2016

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 5

Page 89

- -



2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership

(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities shouid seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for sericus and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises,

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 90



2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are

retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

2.9

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can resuit from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

+ Fire safety;

+ Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances,;

«  Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

« Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
Kits;

« Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

« Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

+ Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and
Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises {as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they

achieve that.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 200317

Page 91



Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10

licence holders shouid make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

» Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

+ Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.1

Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible {o require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any
other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities —~ such as health and safety
authorities — should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

212

2.13

"Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other fegal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations {o that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act’, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

"5 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance.
8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 92

-~ -»



2.14

those premises should be.

Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. it is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate {o promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of ficensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 9

Page 93

- -



2.20

2.21

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate {o address any disturbance
anticipated as cusiomers enter and leave.

Measures to control fight pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a ficensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to

respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm inciudes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking

licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefuily considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered

in circumstances where:

- adult entertainment is provided;

« a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

» it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

» there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
+ in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 94



2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadiy include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration shouid also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, shouid reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

+ restrictions on the hours when children may be present;
restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

+ restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

* age restrictions (below 18);

+ restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

+ requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

+ full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- refated illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 11

Page 95



2.30  The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

2.31  Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. it is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any
emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32  Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers {(who can carry out test purchases under
section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 96

- -



Table of relevant offences under the 2003 Act

Section 145 Unaccompanled chlldren prohibited from | Police and/or Licensing Authority
certain premises ' -
Section 146 | Sale of alcohol to children o Police, Licensing Authority and/or
e I o o " |Local Weights and Measures
AR : { Authority
Section 147 - Aliowmg the sale of aloohoi to _c_hlldren - 1Police, Licensing Authority and/or
eI L : . ' Local Weights and Measures
R T R - .| Authority :
Section 147A Persistently'-seiling al_'c'o_hOE fo ._Ch.iidren - | Police and/or Local Weights and
Section 149 _ Purchase of alcohol by or on behaif of .| Police and/or Licensing Authority -
“|children - SET RN
_Sectcon .1 50 | Consumption of aicohol by chiidren - |{Police andfor Licensing Authority
Section 151 - |{Delivering.alcohol to'children ...~ | Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 152 - |Sending:a child to'obtain alcohol | Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 153 | Prohibition of unsupemsed salesby - Police and/or Licensing Authority
o children - D _ N E AR

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 13

Page 97

- -



3.

Licensable activities

Summary

3.1

3.2

A premises licence authorises the use of any premises (see Chapter 5) for licensable
activities. Licensable activities are defined in section 1 of the 2003 Act, and a fuller
description of certain activities is set out in Schedules 1 and 2 to the 2003 Act.

The licensable aclivities are:

» the sale by retail of alcohol;

« the supply of alcoho! by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

+ the provision of regulated entertainment; and

+ the provision of late night refreshment.

Wholesale of alcohol

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The sale of alcohol to the general public is licensable under the 2003 Act in accordance
with the definition of “sale by retail” in section 192 of the 2003 Act. This section makes it
clear that, to be excluded from the meaning of “sale by retail’, a sale must be:

« made from premises owned by the person making the sale, or occupied under a
lease with security of tenure; and

+ for consumption off the premises.

In addition, to be excluded, the sales must be sales which are made to:

a trader for the purpose of his trade;

+ to a club for the purposes of that club;

. to a holder of a premises licence or a personal licence for the purpose of making
sales under a premises licence; or

. a premises user who has given a temporary event notice, for the purpose of making
sales authorised by that notice.

If an employee were buying alcohol as an “agent” for their employer and for the
purposes of their employer’s trade (i.e. selling alcohol), this could be treated as a sale to
a trader. If, however, an employee were buying for the employee’s own consumption,
this would be a retail sale, and would require a licence.

The same considerations apply in the case of caterers who supply alcohol to their
customers. Where a caterer purchases alcohol and then sells this alcohol to its
customer, an authorisation will be required at the location where the retail sale of the
alcohol is made (likely to be the caterer's own premises). If the customer was proposing
to sell the alcohol under an authorisation, it is the customer who would need an
authorisation under the 2003 Act. In this case, the exemption under the 2003 Act may
apply to the sale made by the caterer.

From 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for example, retailers of aicohol and
trade buyers) will need to ensure that the UK wholesalers that they buy alcohol from
have been approved by HMRC under the Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme
(AWRS). They will need to check their wholesalers Unique Registration Number (URN)

14 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182F5>f the Licensing Act 2003
age of:

L4 - -



against the HMRC online database which will be availabte from April 2017. This is an
ongoing obligation and if a business is found to have bought alcohol from an
unapproved wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face criminal
prosecution and their alcohol stock may be seized. Any trader who buys alcohol from a
wholesaler for onward sale to the general public (known as a 'trade buyer’) does not
need to register unless they sell alcohol to other businesses. Examples of trade buyers
would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and hotels. However, they will need
to check that the wholesaler they purchase alcohol from is registered with HMRC.
Further information may be found at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-
wholesaler-registration-scheme-awrs.

Mobile, remote, internet and other delivery sales

3.8

3.9

3.10

The sale by retail of alcohol is a licensable activity and may only be carried out in
accordance with an authorisation under the 2003 Act. Therefore, a person cannot sell
alcohol from a vehicle or moveabie structure at a series of different locations (e.g. house
to house), unless there is a premises licence in respect of the vehicle or moveable
structure at each location at which a sale of alcohol is made in, on or from it.

The place where the order for alcohol, or payment for it, takes place may not be the
same as the place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract (i.e. the place where
it is identified and specifically set apart for delivery to the purchaser). This position can
arise when sales are made online, by telephone, or mail order. Section 190 of the 2003
Act provides that the sale of alcohol is to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is
appropriated to the contract. It will be the premises at this location which need to be
licensed; for example, a call centre receiving orders for alcohol would not need a licence
but the warehouse where the alcohol is stored and specifically selected for, and
despatched to, the purchaser would need to be licensed. These licensed premises will,
as such, be subject to conditions including the times of day during which alcohol may be
sold. The premises licence will aiso be subject to the mandatory licence conditions.

Persons who run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the
relevant licensing authority that they are operating such a service in their operating
schedule. This ensures that the licensing authority can properly consider what
conditions are appropriate. Premises with an existing premises licence, which choose to
operate such a service in addition to their existing licensable activities, should contact
their licensing authority for its view on whether this form of alcohol sale is already
permitted or whether an application to vary the licence will be required.

Regulated entertainment

3.11

Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are to be treated as the provision of
regulated entertainment and those that are not and are therefore exempt from the
regulated entertainment aspects of the licensing regime, including incidental music —
(see paragraphs 16.1 to 16.3 below). Chapter 16 of this Guidance document sets out
the types of entertainment regulated by the 2003 Act.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 15

Page 99



Licensing qualifications

4.27

Details of licensing qualifications accredited by the Secretary of State will be notified to
licensing authorities and the details may be viewed on the GOV.UK website.

Relevant licensing authority

4.28

Personal licences remain valid unless surrendered, suspended, revoked or declared
forfeit by the courts. For applications made on or after 6 April 2017, a licence granted to
someone subject to immigration control will lapse if the individual ceases to be entitled
to work in the UK. The requirement to renew a personal licence was removed from the
Licensing Act 2003 by the Deregulation Act 2015. While personal licences issued before
the 2015 Act have expiry dates, these licences will remain valid and such dates no
longer have an effect. Once granted, the licensing authority which issued the licence
remains the “relevant licensing authority” for it and its holder, even though the individual
may move out of the area or take employment elsewhere. The personal licence itself will
give details of the issuing licensing authority.

Changes in name or address

4.29

4.30

The holder of the licence is required by the 2003 Act to notify the licensing authority of
any changes to a holder's name or address. These changes should be recorded by the
licensing authority. The holder is also under a duty to notify any convictions for relevant
offences to the licensing authority and the courts are similarly required to inform the
licensing authority of such convictions, whether or not they have ordered the suspension
or forfeiture of the licence. The holder must also notify the licensing authority of any
conviction for a foreign offence. These measures ensure that a single record will be held
of the holder’s history in terms of licensing matters.

The 2003 Act authorises the provision and receipt of such personal information to such
agencies for the purposes of that Act.

Specification of new designated premises supervisors

4.31

4.32

4.33

Every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must specify a DPS. This will
normally be the person who has been given day to day responsibility for running the
premises by the premises licence holder. The only exception is for community premises
which have successfully made an application to remove the usual mandatory conditions
set out in the 2003 Act. Guidance on such applications is set out in paragraphs 4.52 to
4.65 of this Guidance.

The Government considers it essential that police officers, fire officers or officers of the
licensing authority can identify immediately the DPS so that any problems can be dealt
with swiftly. For this reason, the name of the DPS and contact details must be specified
on the premises licence and this must be held at the premises and displayed in
summary form. The DPS' personal address should not be included in the summary form
in order to protect their privacy.

To specify a DPS, the premises licence holder should normally submit an application to the
licensing authority (which may include an application for immediate interim effect) with:

* aform of consent signed by the individual concerned to show that they consent to
taking on this responsible role, and

26 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 100

- ! -»> L



4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

+ the relevant part (Part A) of the licence.

If they are applying in writing, they must also notify the police of the appiication. If the
application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own electronic
facility, the licensing authority must notify the police no later than the first working day
after the application is given.

The premises licence holder must notify the existing DPS (if there is one) of the
application on the same day as the application is given to the licensing authority. This
requirement applies regardless of whether the application was given by means of an
electronic facility, or by some other means.

The general guidance in Chapter 8 on electronic applications applies in respect of new
applications.

Only one DPS may be specified in a single premises licence, but a DPS may supervise
two or more premises as long as the DPS is able to ensure that the licensing objectives
are properly promoted and that each premises complies with the 2003 Act and
conditions on the premises licence.

Where there are frequent changes of DPS, the premises licence holder may submit the
form in advance specifying the date when the new individual will be in post and the
change will take effect.

Police objections to new designated premises supervisors

4.39

4.40

4.41

The police may object to the designation of a new DPS where, in exceptional
circumstances, they believe that the appointment would undermine the crime prevention
objective. The police can object where, for example, a DPS is first specified in relation to
particular premises and the specification of that DFS in relation to the particular
premises gives rise to exceptional concerns. For example, where a personal licence
holder has been allowed by the courts to retain their licence despite convictions for
selling alcohol to children (a relevant offence) and then transfers into premises known
for underage drinking.

Where the police do object, the licensing authority must arrange for a hearing at which
the issue can be considered and both parties can put forward their arguments. The
2003 Act provides that the applicant may apply for the individual to take up post as DPS
immediately and, in such cases, the issue would be whether the individual should be
removed from this post. The licensing authority considering the matter must restrict its
consideration to the issue of crime and disorder and give comprehensive reasons for its
decision. Either party would be entitled to appeal if their argument is rejected.

The portability of personal licences between premises is an important concept under the
2003 Act. It is expected that police objections would arise in only genuinely exceptional
circumstances. If a licensing authority believes that the police are roulinely objecting to
the designation of new premises supervisors on grounds which are not exceptional, they
should raise the matter with the chief officer of police as a matter of urgency.

Revised Gt)dance iss u ed under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 27

age 101



Police objections to existing designated premises supervisors

4,42  The 2003 Act also provides for the suspension and forfeiture of personal licences by the
courts and licensing authorities following convictions for relevant offences, including
breaches of licensing law. The police can at any stage after the appointment of a DPS
seek a review of a premises licence on any grounds relating to the licensing objectives if
problems arise relating to the performance of a DPS. The portability of personal licences
is also important to industry because of the frequency with which some businesses
move managers from premises to premises. It is not expected that licensing authorities
or the police should seek to use the power of intervention as a routine mechanism for
hindering the portability of a licence or use hearings of this kind as a fishing expedition
to test out the individual’'s background and character. |t is expected that such hearings
should be rare and genuinely exceptional.

Convictions and liaison with the courts

4.43  Where a personal licence holder is convicted by a court for a relevant offence, the court
is under a duty to notify the relevant licensing authority of the conviction and of any
decision to order that the personal licence is suspended or declared forfeit. The
sentence of the court has immediate effect despite the fact that an appeal may be
lodged against conviction or sentence (although the court may suspend the forfeiture or
suspension of the licence pending the outcome of any appeal).

4.44  When the licensing authority receives such a notification, it should contact the holder
and request the licence so that the necessary action can be taken. The holder must
then produce the relevant licence to the authority within 14 days. It is expected that the
chief officer of police for the area in which the holder resides would be advised if they do
not respond promptly. The licensing authority should record the details of the conviction,
endorse them on the licence, together with any period of suspension and then return the
licence to the holder. if the licence is declared forfeit, it should be retained by the
licensing authority.

Licensing authority powers to revoke or suspend personal
licences

4.45  The Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities the power to revoke or
suspend personal licences, with effect from 6 April 2017. This is a discretionary power,
licensing authorities are not obliged to give consideration to all personal licence holders
subject to convictions for relevant offences, foreign offences or civil penalties for
immigration matters. When a licensing authority has granted a personal licence and
becomes aware that the licence holder has been convicted of a relevant offence or
foreign offence or been required to pay an immigration penalty, a licensing authority
may revoke the licence or suspend it for a period of up to six months. This applies to
convictions received and civil immigration penalties which a person has been required
to pay at any time before or after the licence was granted, as long as the conviction was
received after 6 April 2017, or the requirement to pay the civil penalty arose after 6 April
2017. Only magistrates’ courts can order the forfeiture or suspension of a personal
licence for convictions received prior to 6 April 2017. The process which must be
undertaken by the licensing authority to suspend or revoke a personal licence is set out
at section 132A of the 2003 Act. The decision o revoke or suspend a personal licence

28 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 102



9.

Determining applications

General

9.1

When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an
application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the
application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in
accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (8), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the
2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises
certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with
regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7). 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This
means that the iicensing authority must consider among other things whether the
application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations.

Where no representations are made

9.2

A hearing is nol required where an application has been properly made and no
responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where
representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing
authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which
are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the
2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing
authority’s officials who shouid replicate the proposals contained in the operating
schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence
conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications,
for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have
subsequently been agreed.

Where representations are made

9.3

Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to
9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. [t will also be engaged
if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are
also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can
be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations

9.4

A representation is "relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from
new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that
nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives.
For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to

66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the LicensingbAct 2003

Page 103



9.5

0.6

97

9.8

9.9

9.10

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or
other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises.

It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what
might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or
annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or
justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival
businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such
matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and
whether any inconvenience or expense caused by i could reasonably be considered to
be proportionate.

Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness.
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in
relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.

Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these
grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority's corporate complaints
procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial
review.

Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are
frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political
judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents
within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the
recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for
consideration by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a
hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are
unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves.

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of
a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The
subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making
the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any
person can make representations to them.

The role of responsible authorities

9.1

Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new
applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding
applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it
is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have
appropriate grounds to do so.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 67

Page 104



Representations from the police

912

In their role as a responsible authority, the police are an essential source of advice and
information on the impact and potential impact of licensable activities, particularly on the
crime and disorder objective. The police have a key role in managing the night-time
economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local
area”. The police should be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters
relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective, but may also be
able to make relevant representations with regard to the other licensing objectives if
they have evidence to support such representations. The licensing authority should
accept all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police unless the
authority has evidence that to do so would not be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. However, it remains incumbent on the police to ensure that their
representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar
framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible
authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences
or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for
the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity
as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in
accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act.

Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of
other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups)
although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can
make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is
reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations
themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have
failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a
representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority.

It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsibie authorities
should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other
responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the
representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to
make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each
responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently
without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority.

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means
of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having
to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing

® Elections for Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) in all police force areas in England and Wales (except in London,
where the Mayor of London has taken on the powers of a PCC in relation to the Metropotitan Police) took place on 15th
November 2012. PCCs are expected {0 have a central role working in partnership with local authorities, enforcement bodies and
other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackie alcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. However, the
Chief Officer of Police witl remain the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act.

68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 105



9.17

9.18

9.19

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that
granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed
premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without
waiting for any other person to do so.

In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to
the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the
authority to ensure procedurat fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases
licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee
comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing
officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of
licensing authority and responsible authority} to different officials within the authority.

In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to
different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper
separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the
authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from
the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the
responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and
should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the
determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place
between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence
application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in
relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with
other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be
made in writing. It is for the licensing authority {o determine how the separate roles are
divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not
be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have
processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome.

Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more
difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed
by the authority.

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities

9.20

9.21

Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)® or Local Health
Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have
sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil
those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will
need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which
exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance
services.

Health bodies may hold information which other responsible guthorities do not, but
which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may

 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended
the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorilies (Parinership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012,

Reviged Guida issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 69
Page 106

- -



9.22

9.23

9.24

be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support
representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police. Such
representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives.
Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and
injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use
of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many
will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and
disorder ohjectives.

However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of
the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible
authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for
health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of
children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but
also their moral and psychological well being.

Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance,
hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications
for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives.
Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this
objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used
to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities,
about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police
could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping' (where under 18s approach
adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be
able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcohol to
an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious,
health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its
effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data.

DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anocnymised information about
incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a
cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local
information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support
representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for
information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about
assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments,
including the date, time and location of the assault — i.e. the name of the pub, club or
street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance
callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific
premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions
involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups.

70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 oflge Licensin t 2003
2587

- L d



Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible

authority

9.25  The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in
respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6
April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office
immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf.
When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do
so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is
concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required
under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with
copies of the relevant representations that have been made.

9.27  In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority
may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal
details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.

9.28  Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded
fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis,
they may wish to consider alternative approaches.

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority
with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so
that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal
details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general
location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered
where the circumstances justify such action.

Hearings

9.31  Regulations governing hearings may be found on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If
the licensing authority decides that representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing
to consider them. The need for a hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the
licensing authority, the applicant and all of the persons who made relevant
representations. In cases where only ‘positive’ representations are received, without
qualifications, the licensing authority should consider whether a hearing is required. To
this end, it may wish to notify the persons who made representations and give them the
opportunity to withdraw those representations. This would need to be done in sufficient
time before the hearing to ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary
inconvenience.

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in
good time before the hearing. If the application is amended at the last moment, the
licensing committee should consider giving other persons time to address the revised
application before the hearing commences.

9.33  Regulations made under the 2003 Act require that representations must be withdrawn

Revis&l Guida issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 71
age 108

-» L 4



9.34

0.35

9.36

9.37

0.38

9.39

24 hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the
hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing.
However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations
are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement,
the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations
to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest.

Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities before formulating
their applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time
limits come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must
meet the requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise
which are not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements
as they see fit as long as they are lawful.

There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made
representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in
reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local
authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer
may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing
authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities
may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible
authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing
determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented
by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process.

As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a
responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual
has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination.

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation.

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:

+ the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,

+ the representations (including supporting information} presented by all the parties;
+ this Guidance;

+ its own statement of licensing policy.

The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the
conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide
reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties.
Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party
to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the
application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.

72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin

Act 2003
Page 109

- -»



9.40

9.41

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is
merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to
the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to
the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has
not been necessary.

Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify
a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable
activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish
hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most
current information.

In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to
or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an
applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or
both of these where appropriate.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42

9.43

9.44

Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should
be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case
may be.

The authority's determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to
achieve.

Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to
achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide
that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the
potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such
as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the
potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is
imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing
authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place {o
mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the
track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing
authority is éxpected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the
evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003173

Page 110



Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are
made simultaneously

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that
they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing
committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts
prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and
scheme designs.

74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensiniﬁ:l\-ct 2003

Page 1

- -



10. Conditions attached to premises

licences and club premises certificates

General

10.1

10.2

10.3

This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises
licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set
out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16).

Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and
essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club
premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the
carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with
any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on
conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The
courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are
imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided.

There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate:
proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail
below.

Proposed conditions

104

10.5

The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should
emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or
certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a
premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out
the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other
hours during which the premises will be open to the public.

It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an
applicant's operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the

applicant’s intention.

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule

10.6

10.7

The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has
been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made
by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted
subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the
application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act.

Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as
that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may
lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important
therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and
unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must
be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts.

Revis Guidan]c-e iﬁued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 75
age 11

- -



Imposed conditions

10.8  The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been
exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a
hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to
promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are
aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to
minor variations.

10.9  Itis possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote
the licensing objectives.

Proportionality

10.10  The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type,
location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned.
Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions
which ignore these individual aspects shouid be avoided. For example, conditions
should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of
CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be
appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the
prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night
refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work
checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any
document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises.
Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect
costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events
that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes.
Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only
those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises

10.11  The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of
alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence
of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks
linked to the undermining of cne of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should,
in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for
the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to
impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the
Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case
by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives.

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on
the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure
that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to
those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are
considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are
published on the Portman Group's website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If
a product's packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code,

76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 113



the Portman Group may issue a Relailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision
and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-
sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision.

Hours of trading

10.13

10.14

10.15

The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can
conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsibie authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving
individual consideration to the merits of each application.

Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable
activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would
undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for
consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping
unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those
hours.

The performance of plays

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must
not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the
performance of a play’ which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any
way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act.

Censorship

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions
which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper
function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The
content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws
governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children,
their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should
normally be imposed.

Major festivals and carnivals

10.18

Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and
carnivals {o approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for
licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may
seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations

" See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 77

Page 114



within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating
schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its

preparation.

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made
which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing
authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and
will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the

individual applications.

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the
licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in
their own name.® This could include, for example, village greens, market squares,
promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas
where festivals and carnivals might take place.® Performers and entertainers would
then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to
enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the
permission of the local authority to put on the event.

Fixed prices

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised bianket conditions promoting fixed
prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises
certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important
to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003
Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a
significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also
prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56.

10.22  Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or
other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition fo those restricted by the
mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits,
tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular
and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant
representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or
price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be
appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition
prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic
beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all,
licensing authorities should take their own legal advice.

% No licence is required for any enterfainment provided by or on behalf of a local autherity, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19
¥ The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.ukigovernment/publications/licensed-spaces-register

78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 115

-» : -



Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs)

10.23 Large capacity "vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical
Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities,
which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and
have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the
environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood
of crime and disorder.

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of
the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to
observe:

» a prescribed capacity;

« an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and

+ arequirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are
present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to
deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both.

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every
licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified.

Designated premises supervisor

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol,
it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no
designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the
designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal
licence has been suspended.

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is
to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence
holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in
force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running
the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the
designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence
holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application
has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3)
of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance).

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal
licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However,
the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible
for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and
conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 79

Page 116

- -



Authorisation by personal licence holders

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that
every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated
premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which
alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does
not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises
supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times.

Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a
personal licence holder does not mean that only personal ficence holders can make
sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence
holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at
times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible
personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of
anyone authorised to make sales.

“Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each
sale of alcohol. The guestion arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately,
whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be
decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution.

The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation
has been given:

+ the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly
identified;

« the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the
person who is authorised to supply alcohol;

- there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written
statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and

» there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to
monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis.

It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written
authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written
authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This
would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues
arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are
challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol.

Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could
not give rise to enforcement action.

it must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal
licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are
responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder
remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed
at the premises.

80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 oflgle Licensjn t 2003
age Ti?”

- -



Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions

10.36

10.37

10.38

The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act {the
conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the
mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition
on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in
the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate
authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The
mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS
and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however,
have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory aspirational licence
conditions do not apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a
temporary event notice.

Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in
Annex A of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of
the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on
the date that those conditions came into force.

Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing
conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory
conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing
conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates
the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing
conditions.

Irresponsible promotions

10.39

Under this condition, the "responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a
premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is
authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer
of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohot) should
be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits
one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of
the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more
than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing
objectives.

Drinking games

10.40

Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol
within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise,
are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions.
This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed
or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily
prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed o encourage individuals to
drink excessively or rapidly.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 81

Page 118



l.arge quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities
of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that
such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This
includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain
time or “all you can drink for £10". Promotions can be designed with a particular group in
mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may
include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which
could become more vuinerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a
result of excessive alcohol consumption.

Prizes and rewards

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize
to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the
definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a
promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include
promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of
alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and "Buy one cocktail and get a
second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or
discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period.

Posters and flyers

10.43 lIrresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association
with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be
reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed
directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games
such as the ‘dentist’'s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of
another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to
promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’
mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink
without assistance due to a disability.

Free potable water

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is
provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises.
What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be
reascnable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water
supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it
may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances.

82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the LicensTi@ct 2003
age

- -~



Age verification

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This
must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see
paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a
holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises
to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their
preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet
the requirements of the mandatory condition.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff
(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the
existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises.

The designated premises supervisor {(where there is one) must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This
means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only
aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy.

It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy
which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age
greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have
a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce
identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the
mandatory code.

Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply
with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol
made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales,
and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of
the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before
a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or
through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not
actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for
example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any
person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully
what steps are appropriate {o ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol
is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is
aged 18 or over. ltis, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the
alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been
checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age.

Smaller measures

10.51

The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if
sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures:
+ Beer or cider: ¥ pint
Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml
+ Still wine in a glass: 125mi

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 83

Page 120

- -



10.52

10.53

10.54

As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person
must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying
them on printed materials available {o customers on the premises. This can include
making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are
displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example,
at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small
measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular

measure.
This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been

made up in advance ready for saie or supply in a securely closed container. For
example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it

available in 1/2 pints does not apply.
The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff
are made aware of the application of this condition.

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises
supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes
or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a
club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the
alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty muitiplied by a
percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the
date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a
calculator to determine permitied prices for each product are available on the Home

Office website.

Where there is a change 1o the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance,
following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects
the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate.

It is stili permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with
any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should
ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed
guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the

Gov.uk website.

Exhibition of films

10.59

10.60

The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the

licensing authority itself.
The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the

84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin&ict 2003

Page 1



definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of
exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any filmy', it is
therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts.

Door supervision

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence
that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises o carry out a
security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act")), the licence must include a condition requiring that
individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA™} under the 2001
Act, or be entitied to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act.

A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that
person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example,
certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection
with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain
circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA's

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15).

Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying
out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should
only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)}(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act
applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the
meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals
performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation
to any such activities.

Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose
such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as

unlicensed premises. Those are:

+ premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a
performance of a play or an exhibition of a film;

» casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005;

- premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on
under the authority of that certificate.

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details.

It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small
number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract)
to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking
licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act

applies.

It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be
present to carry out security activities {(as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act)
this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold
an SlA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001
Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be
present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward
activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 85

Page 122



should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when
determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003
Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall
within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless
of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act
the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for
which they are licensable under that Act.)

86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 123

- -



11. Reviews

The review process

11.1

11.3

11.4

11.5

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any
of the four licensing objectives.

An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK
or the licensing authority's electronic facility.

In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. it is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.

Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is slill achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.

Revised Guidange issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 87
Page 127

- -



11.7

11.8

11.10

11.11

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Foliowing the grant or variation
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town
centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow
for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.

Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to
cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative
impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subseguent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount
to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees
and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives
this requirement.

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-
operation.

If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review

11.12

A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:
« a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or

« representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or

+ representations which would have been made when the application for the premises

B8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 1



11.13

11.14

11.15

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a2 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in reguiations. These
regulations are published on the Government's legislation website

(www legislation.gov.uk). it is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16

1117

11.18

11.19

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
— that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 { 89
Page



11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

+ modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

+ exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)'?;

» remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the resuit of poor management;

- suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

+ revoke the licence.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority's decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

0 Sae chapter 15 in refation to the licensing of live and recorded music.

90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin&%\ct 2003

Page 1

- -



Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority's role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows & conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. it is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the ficensing objectives
and the prevention of iflegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises

which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed

premises:

» for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;

+ for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

» for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected;

- for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

» for prostitution or the sale of unfawful pornography;

+ by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

+ as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs:

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 91

Page 128

- : -



« for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

- for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

+ for unlawful gambling; and
+ for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 |Itis envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the
Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run concurrently and are as follows:

» when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review ~ the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received;

+ the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

« notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.30 The Government récognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another {e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store's age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensiniléct 2003

Page 1



13. Appeals

13.1

This chapter provides advice about entittements to appeal in connection with various
decisions made by a licensing authority under the provisions of the 2003 Act.
Entitlements to appeal for parties aggrieved by decisions of the licensing authority are
set out in Schedule 5 to the 2003 Act.

General

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

With the exception of appeals in relation to closure orders, an appeal may be made to
any magistrates’ court in England or Wales but it is expected that applicants would bring
an appeal in a magistrates’ court in the area in which they or the premises are situated.

An appeal has to be commenced by the appellant giving a notice of appeal to the
designated officer for the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with
the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision
which is being appealed.

The licensing authority will always be a respondent to the appeal, but in cases where a
favourable decision has been made for an applicant, licence holder, club or premises
user against the representations of a responsible authority or any other person, or the
objections of the chief officer of police, the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement), or
local authority exercising environmental health functions, the holder of the premises or
personal licence or club premises certificate or the person who gave an interim authority
notice or the premises user will also be a respondent to the appeal, and the person who
made the relevant representation or gave the objection will be the appeliants.

Where an appeal has been made against a decision of the licensing authority, the
licensing authority will in all cases be the respondent to the appeal and may call as a
witness a responsible authority or any other person who made representations against
the application, if it chooses to do so. For this reason, the licensing authority should
consider keeping responsible authorities and others informed of developments in
relation to appeals to allow them to consider their position. Provided the court considers
it appropriate, the licensing authority may also call as witnesses any individual or body
that they feel might assist their response to an appeal.

The court, on hearing any appeal, may review the merits of the decision on the facts
and consider points of law or address both.

On determining an appeal, the court may:

+ dismiss the appeal;
+ substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could have
been made by the licensing authority; or

» remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of it in accordance with the
direction of the court and make such order as to costs as it thinks fit.

All parties should be aware that the court may make an order for one party to pay
another party’s costs.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 101

Page 130



On any appeal, the court is not entitled to consider whether the licence holder should
have been convicted of an immigration offence or been required to pay an immigration
penalty, or whether they should have been granted by the Home Office permission to be
in the UK. This is because separate rights exist to appeal these matters or to have an
immigration decision administratively reviewed.

Licensing policy statements and Section 182 guidance

13.8

13.9

In hearing an appeal against any decision made by a licensing authority, the
magistrates’ court will have regard to that licensing authority’s statement of licensing
policy and this Guidance. However, the court would be entitled to depart from either the
statement of licensing policy or this Guidance if it considered it was justified to do so
because of the individual circumstances of any case. In other words, while the court will
normally consider the matter as if it were “standing in the shoes” of the licensing
authority, it would be entitled to find that the licensing authority should have departed
from its own policy or the Guidance because the particular circumstances would have
justified such a decision.

In addition, the court is entitled to disregard any part of a licensing policy statement or
this Guidance that it holds to be ultra vires the 2003 Act and therefore unlawful. The
normal course for challenging a statement of licensing policy or this Guidance should be
by way of judicial review, but where it is submitted to an appellate court that a statement
of policy is itself ultra vires the 2003 Act and this has a direct bearing on the case before
it, it would be inappropriate for the court, on accepting such a submission, to compound
the original error by relying on that part of the statement of licensing policy affected.

Giving reasons for decisions

13.10

It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons for its
decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate reasons could itself give
rise to grounds for an appeal. It is particularly important that reasons should aiso address
the extent to which the decision has been made with regard to the licensing authority's
statement of policy and this Guidance. Reasons should be promulgated to all the parties
of any process which might give rise to an appeal under the terms of the 2003 Act.

Implementing the determination of the magistrates’ courts

13.11

As soon as the decision of the magistrates’ court has been promulgated, licensing
authorities should implement it without delay. Any attempt to delay implementation will
only bring the appeal system into disrepute. Standing orders should therefore be in place
that on receipt of the decision, appropriate action should be taken immediately unless
ordered by the magistrates’ court or a higher court to suspend such action (for example,
as a result of an on-going judicial review). Except in the case of closure orders, the 2003
Act does not provide for a further appeal against the decision of the magistrates’ courts
and normal rules of challenging decisions of magistrates’ courts will apply.

102 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 tif)tgs LiceT\jgiAct 2003
ge

-»> -



This page is intentionally left blank



Review- Sunlea Store, 17 Hookergate Lane, High

Not Set One company:

=

O\ f— e
a
.F
Newholme T \/Q/

o

¢ T

X DUR
pC

o . z ASHFIEL

n - .

[

=y

| : 148.1m
h " soo
B %%

N

S

3

i
@@%@@.

2

o

0 0005 0.01 0.02
Legend Scale: s w——— K\

Reproduced fram the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Me
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012,

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

Organisation Gateshead Counci
Department Development and Public Prote
Comments Not Set

Date 02/08/2017

MSA Number SLA

Page 133




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


